
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD A
MEETING AT THE GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST
ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING
BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV).  THE MEETING IS
ALSO TELEVISED TO THE GILA COUNTY COMPLEX, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' CONFERENCE ROOM,
610 E. HIGHWAY 260, PAYSON, ARIZONA.  

NOTE:  Per the most recent guidelines from the federal government regarding COVID-19 and
to protect citizens, no citizens will be allowed in the Board of Supervisors' hearing room at
the Globe Courthouse or at the County Complex, Board of Supervisors' conference room in
Payson.  The only exception to this statement is for public hearings.  Citizens may attend the
public hearing in person, one at a time, in Globe or in Payson to provide comments.  A face
mask must be worn while in the building; however, it may be removed while addressing the
Board of Supervisors.

Citizens may watch the Board meeting live-streamed at:  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live

Citizens may submit written comments related to the December 1st Regular Meeting agenda
by no later than 5 p.m. on Monday, November 30th, by emailing to the Clerk of the Board at
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov or calling 928-402-8757.  Citizens may also submit written
comments during the meeting through YouTube.  Please include the meeting date, agenda
item number, your name and residence address in the email.

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, DECEMBER 1, 2020 - 10:00 A.M.
REVISED

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge the letter of
certification for the November 3, 2020, Gila County school
district elections held within Gila County as submitted by
the Gila County School Superintendent. (Roy Sandoval)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement for Request for Qualifications No.
111020-Indigent Legal Attorney Services. (Jonathan Bearup)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live


C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment
Nos. 2 and 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. ADHS18-177678) between Gila County and the Arizona
Department of Health Services to replace the Price Sheet
which includes funding for an additional $202,500 as
needed through June 30, 2021, and to revise the Scope of
Work. (Michael O'Driscoll)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
cancellation of an Intergovernmental Agreement between
the Town of Star Valley and Gila County Animal Control
which includes sending the required 30-day cancellation
notification to the Town of Star Valley. (Michael O'Driscoll)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No.
1 to Contract No. 072920-Sub-Grantee for COVID-19
Incident Management Support between Gila County and
Command Solutions 4 to change the contract from
$442,000 to $882,000 and extend the term of the contract
to February 28, 2022. (Michael O'Driscoll)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the publication
of a Notice of Public Auction for the sale of miscellaneous
surplus vehicles and equipment. (Mary Springer)

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 110520-CRS-2P
& MC-800 Chip Oils to be used by the Gila County
Consolidated Roads Division. (Steve Sanders)

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of a
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement between Sourcewell and
Inland Kenworth Inc. under Contract No. 060920-KTC in an
amount not to exceed $102,185.73 for the purchase of a
2021 water truck, and authorize the Chairman’s signature
on the awarded contract. (Steve Sanders)

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to appoint members of the



I.   Information/Discussion/Action to appoint members of the
Board of Supervisors to the following boards, committees,
and organizations for the calendar year 2021: County
Supervisors Association Legislative Policy Committee;
Eastern Arizona Counties Organization; Correctional
Officers Retirement Plan (CORP) Local Board for Sheriff's
Office Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers; Gila
County Local Emergency Planning Committee; Central
Arizona Governments Regional Council; Gila County
Community College Allied Health Care Advisory Committee;
Gila County College Industry and Mining Advisory Board;
CORP Local Board for Sheriff's Office Dispatchers; Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board; Gila
County Board of Health; San Carlos Apache Tribe
Partnership Steering Committee; and Coalition of
Arizona/New Mexico Counties. (Woody Cline)

 

J.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for
the purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 101-09-129
and, if accepted, authorize the Chairman's signature on the
Quit Claim Deed. (Marian Sheppard)

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Appointment of the following Libertarian Party Precinct
Committeemen in Gila County: Bruce Orin Wales -Payson
#2 Precinct; Lawrence I. Hoffenberg -Payson #8 Precinct;
and Jeff Daniels-Zane Gray Precinct.

 

B.   Approval of the Board of Supervisors' November 17, 2020,
meeting minutes.

 

C.   Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.



 

D.   Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by the Recorder's Office. 

 

E.   Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the
Peace's Office.

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the
Peace's Office.

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for
public benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

5. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 

 



6. EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  
 

A.   Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (1), vote to convene in
executive session to discuss and consider a proposed
four-year employment contract between Gila County and W.
James Menlove for the period January 1, 2021, through
December 31, 2024. (Woody Cline) 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-6353   Regular Agenda Item     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Roy Sandoval, School Superintendent 
Submitted By: Cindy Fisher-Smith, Executive Assistant
Department: School Superintendent's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County School Superintendent's Letter of Certification for the
November 3, 2020, Gila County School District Elections

Background Information
The Superintendent of Gila County Schools called for Gila County school
district elections that were held on November 3, 2020, in order to seek
voter approval for the four-year open terms of school board members. In
accordance with Arizona Revised Statute § 15-426, the School
Superintendent has submitted a certification of the returns for the
canvass of the Gila County school district elections held on November 3,
2020.

Evaluation
On December 1, 2020, the Superintendent of Gila County Schools
canvassed the results of the November 3, 2020 election. In accordance
with Arizona Revised Statute § 15-426, a letter of certification has been
submitted to the Board of Supervisors.

Conclusion
The Superintendent of Gila County Schools has submitted a letter of
certification in compliance with Arizona Revised Statute § 15-426 for
acknowledgment by the Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation
Roy Sandoval, Gila County School Superintendent, recommends that the
Gila County Board of Supervisors acknowledge the letter of certification
for the November 3, 2020, Gila County school district elections as
submitted.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge the letter of certification



Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge the letter of certification
for the November 3, 2020, Gila County school district elections held
within Gila County as submitted by the Gila County School
Superintendent. (Roy Sandoval)

Attachments
Canvass Letter
Election Results
A.R.S. 15-426









   
ARF-6354   Regular Agenda Item     2. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY 2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-21 to 06-30-22 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Request for Qualifications No. 111020-Indigent
Legal Attorney Services

Background Information
It is the intent of this solicitation to procure legal representation for
indigent citizens of Gila County in juvenile dependency cases; probate
(guardianship/conservatorship) cases; Guardian ad Litem appointments;
and appointments as Best Interest Attorney.

Gila County is responsible for providing legal representation in certain
matters to citizens who are found to be indigent. Court Administration is
requesting approval to advertise for professional legal services.

Evaluation
At the request of the Presiding Judge, Court Administration was tasked
with evaluating the current format for indigent legal counsel in juvenile
dependency cases; probate (guardianship/conservatorship) cases;
Guardian ad Litem appointments; and appointments as Best Interest
Attorney.

The motivations for the evaluation were primarily three-fold: 1) although
contracts were developed in 2014 there has never been a procurement of
professional legal services according to County policy; 2) Court
Administration has a fiduciary responsibility to Gila County to ensure
that compensation is fair and accountable; and 3) the current system of



indigent defense, which is believed to have been in place for twenty years
or so, has never been re-evaluated or otherwise assessed.

An analysis of case filing data, in conjunction with research into current
appointment trends, was used to arrive at a new format for the provision
of indigent legal services. The proposed format was assessed as being
cost-neutral in terms of budgetary impact.

Conclusion
In order to meet the three primary goals stated above, the Court
Administration is seeking to advertise for services to align with the new
approach.

Recommendation
Staff recommends proceeding with advertising Request for Qualifications
No. 111020-Indigent Legal Attorney Services.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement for
Request for Qualifications No. 111020-Indigent Legal Attorney Services. 
(Jonathan Bearup)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
RFQ No 111020 Indigent Defense Attorney Services





 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS NO.  111020 

 
INDIGENT LEGAL ATTORNEY SERVICES 

 
GILA COUNTY 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
Tim Humphrey, Member 

 

 
 

*County Manager* 
James Menlove 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR 
QUALIFICATIONS 

1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 

85501 

        SOLICITATION NUMBER 
          111020 

 

BID DUE DATE: January 28, 2021 TIME:  3:00 PM 
 

DESCRIPTION: Indigent Legal Attorney Services 
 
PRE-BID CONFERENCE: Not Applicable 
 
Bid Submittal Location:   Gila County Procurement, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501 

 
Bid Opening Location:  Gila County Copper Building Conference Room 

1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ  85501 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as 
specified will be received by the Gila County Procurement Department, until the time and date 
cited. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling Gila County Procurement at 928-
402-4355, Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire Request for Qualifications. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in 
the Copper Building Conference Room, 1350 E. Monroe St., Globe, AZ, or another site, which may be 
designated.  Any proposals received later than the date and time specified above will not be 
considered.   
 
The County takes no responsibility for informing recipients of changes to the original solicitation 
document.  It is the bidders responsibility to obtain a copy of any amendment relevant to this 
solicitation.   
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, 
or to waive any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest 
of Gila County.   
 
All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and 
regulations of the Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the 
Clerk of the Board’s Department, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ. 
 

Payson Roundup advertisement dates:   December 8, 2020 and December 15, 2020 

 

Signed:  ______________________________________________________________  Date:  _________________  
                Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Signed:  ______________________________________________________________  Date:  ________________ 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 
 

INDEX 
 

Section A  Request for Qualifications 
 
Section B  Purpose of the RFQ/Intent/Evaluation Criteria 
 
Section C  Instructions to Respondents 
 
Section D  Qualifications 
 
Section E  Scope of Work 
 
 
 

 
 
    

 
 
Gila County General Provisions 
 
*NOTE:  The General Provisions are being provided solely for the purpose of 
the potential bidder to be aware of Gila County’s liability requirements and 
contract format. 



 

1 

 

Section A. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 
 

RFQ NO.  111020 
 
It is the intent of Gila County to hire attorneys to perform the services as outlined in the ‘Scope of 
Work” for Indigent Legal Attorney Services in Gila County. 
 
Indigent Legal Attorney Services 
 
 
Request for Qualifications are to be received in the office of: 
 

Betty Hurst, Gila County Contracts Administrator  
Copper Building 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 
Until: 3:00 p.m. on January 28, 2021, at which time a representative of the Purchasing Services 
Department shall announce publicly the names of those firms submitting responses.  No other 
public disclosure shall be made until after award of the contract. 
 
All inquiries regarding this request shall be directed to: 
 
 Name:  Betty Hurst, Gila County Contracts Administrator 
 Address: 1400 E. Ash Street 
   Globe, AZ  85501 
 
 Phone:  (928) 402-4355 
 Email:  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov


 

2 

 

Section B. PURPOSE OF THE RFQ 
 

 
1. The intent of this RFQ is to establish a listing of qualified attorneys to provide legal 

representation to indigent persons as assigned by the Superior Court or Court 
Administration.  Attorneys interested in being selected for the proposed work shall submit 
their proposal to Betty Hurst – Gila County Contracts Administrator, by January 28, 2021 at 
3:00 P.M. 
 

2. Any questions regarding the proposed work must be submitted in writing no later than 3:00 
P.M. on January 18, 2021.  All questions will be answered in writing no later than January 
24, 2021 at 3:00 P.M. 

 
3. Proposals will be evaluated based on the minimum requirements and the evaluation criteria 

set forth in Section D. 
 

Section C. INSTRUCTIONS TO RESPONDENTS 
 
RFQ’s shall be addressed and delivered to: 
 
 Name:  Betty Hurst 

Gila County Contracts Administrator 
 Address: 1400 E. Ash Street 
   Globe, AZ  85501 
 
 

Responses shall be in a sealed envelope marked as follows:  
 
Name of Respondent 
Title of Respondent 
RFQ Title and Number 
Date and Time Response is Due 
 
 
No telephonic, telegraphic, or facsimile responses shall be considered.  Responses 
received after the time for closing shall be returned to the respondent unopened. 
 

1. Responses shall be submitted in 5 copies. 
 

2. No department, school, or office at the County has the authority to solicit official responses 
other than the Finance Department.  All solicitation is performed under the direct supervision 
of the Finance Director and in complete accordance with Gila County policies and procedures. 
 

3. Responding firms may be requested to meet with the selection committee to discuss their 
Request for Qualifications.  Scheduling of these discussions shall be accomplished by Court 
Administration. 
 

4. Any information considered to be proprietary by the respondent shall be placed in a separate 
envelope and marked "Proprietary Information."  To the extent the Finance Director concurs, 
this information shall not be considered public information.  The Finance Director is the final 
authority as to the extent of material which is considered confidential.  Pricing information 
cannot be considered proprietary. 



 

3 

 

5. If responding by express mail, allow sufficient time for delivery.  Globe is considered a rural 
area; thereby Federal Express deliveries are often made late in the afternoon.  RFQ proposals 
may not be faxed nor electronically transmitted to the County.  Proposals, which are received 
after the deadline, will not be considered.  Respondents must ensure delivery (not 
postmarking) by the date and time indicated above. 
 

6. Proposals shall be signed by an authorized agent of the company. 
 
Section D. QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Applicant Evaluation  
 
All applicant attorneys’ qualifications will be evaluated by a panel comprised of Superior 
Court judges and / or other court staff as designated by the Presiding Judge, based generally 
upon the criterion described below.   
 
“Member – State Bar of Arizona”: In order for an applicant to be considered, they must be a 
member of the State Bar of Arizona. 
 
“Bar Discipline”: In the evaluation of any formal Bar discipline, the panel will consider 1) the 
frequency of complaints; 2) the severity of the discipline imposed; and 3) the nature of the 
complaint (for example, ethics / moral turpitude complaints may result in a greater reduction in 
scoring than a technical or procedural violation.) Any unsubstantiated complaints will not be 
considered.   
 
 “Years of Experience”: “Years of Experience” means the total number of years that an applicant 
attorney has been practicing in any capacity.  
 
“Years of Experience in Specific Field Applied For”: “Years of Experience in Specific Field 
Applied For” means the total number of years that an applicant attorney has been practicing in the 
specific field for which they have applied.  
 
“References / Recommendations”: The panel will evaluate references and recommendations 
based upon the strength of the references and / or recommendations contained in their response / 
Letter of Interest / Statement of Qualifications. Further, the panel may also consider the originating 
source of the reference / recommendation; the interpretation of the reference / recommendation 
as it relates to professional competencies; the length of the association between the attorney and 
the reference / recommendation; and any specific attributes highlighted by the reference / 
recommendation.  
 
“Willingness to Travel to Payson and Globe”: Scoring in this category will be based upon the 
applicant attorney’s willingness to accept case appointments in both Payson and Globe.  

  

“Willing to Accept Appointments in Various Case Types”: The expectation is that an applicant 
attorney is willing to accept appointments in case types outside the primary scope of the contract.  

 
After initial evaluation of the Qualifications received, the panel may decide to interview 
applicant attorneys.  
 
 
 
 



 

4 

 

“Interview”: For applicant attorneys receiving interviews, scoring will be based upon the 
interviewee’s demonstration of professional expertise; apparent ability to effectively advocate for 
indigent clients; courteous and professional demeanor; and an understanding of modern case 
processing.  
 
Once the interview process is completed, the panel will rank the applicant attorneys and route the 
list to the Presiding Judge. The Presiding Judge will recommend some or all of the applicant 
attorneys to the Gila County Board of Supervisors for consideration of contract award. 
 
 
Section E. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Gila County, in conjunction with Superior Court Administration is developing a listing of qualified 
attorneys to accept case assignments within Gila County Superior Courts in both Payson and Globe. 
The intent of this Request for Qualifications is to establish a listing of qualified attorneys to provide 
legal representation to indigent defendants as assigned by the Court or Court Administration.  This 
solicitation encompasses the following areas of indigent defense practice:   
 

  

- Juvenile Dependency       - Guardianship / Conservatorship  

- “Best Interests Attorney” services   - Guardian ad Litem   

 
 
All case assignments made to contracted attorneys pursuant to an award under this solicitation 
shall be under the new contract terms and compensation schedules specified within this 
solicitation.    
 
Contractors agree to fully comply with all terms and conditions specified within this solicitation for 
inclusion on the list of qualified Gila County Indigent Defense Attorneys. Each applicant shall 
register as a vendor with Gila County and shall comply with the requirements of vendor registration 
upon submission of their application and response to this solicitation. Additionally, fees and 
compensation for each area of practice are predetermined and are not negotiable, except as 
otherwise noted.  
  
Submission of an application in response to this solicitation shall signify full understanding and 
agreement with the terms and conditions of the solicitation. Applicants shall clearly designate the 
area or areas of practice for which they are applying. No guarantee is made regarding the frequency 
of assignments or volume of work that any attorney may be offered.  For purposes of this 
solicitation only, the terms “Contractor”, “Attorney” and “Applicant” are used inter-changeably to 
mean the individual who successfully responds to this solicitation and is placed on the list of 
qualified Indigent Legal Services Attorneys for Gila County. 
 
 
INDIGENT LEGAL ATTORNEY SERVICES REQUIREMENTS 

  
I. CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITES  

A. CASE ASSIGNMENT: The Court, under the terms of this solicitation and at its sole 
discretion, shall assign cases.  



 

5 

 

B. NON-EXCLUSIVE STATUS: Gila County may contract for the same or similar 
professional services through persons other than Contractor 

C. EFFECTIVE REPRESENTATION: Contractor shall comply with the Arizona Rules of 
Professional Conduct, State and Local Court Rules and the written administrative and 
procedural policies and procedures established by the Court(s). Contractor shall 
effectively represent the client including, but not limited to:  

1 Contacting and conferring with the Client concerning the representation within a 

reasonable or mandated amount of time upon notice of assignment.  

2 Maintaining reasonable contact and adequately communicating with the client until the 

representation is terminated.  

3 Promptly assembling the core defense team and continually monitoring the case for the 

need of additional expert, investigative, or other ancillary professional services.  

4 Continually monitoring the Client’s mental, physical and emotional condition for effects on 

Client’s legal position.  

5 Using reasonable diligence in notifying the Client of necessary Court appearances, 

including any Court action that arises out of the Client’s non-appearance.  

6 Conducting all out-of-Court preparation required for competent representation of the 

Client, including a prompt and thorough Client interview and such additional interviews 

and investigation as may be appropriate.  

7 Appearing in Court on time and prepared for scheduled proceedings, unless prior 

arrangements have been made with the Court.  

8 Displaying appropriate respectful professional demeanor and conduct in all dealings with 

the Court, opposing counsel, parties and the Client.  

9 Facilitating the work of successor counsel.  

10 Recognition of legal issues.  

11 Effective legal research and use of motions.  

12 Effective case development including thorough interviews, appropriate use of investigators, 

and timely and comprehensive witness interviews.  

13 Effectiveness in negotiations.  

14 Thorough and effective trial preparation including anticipation of key legal issues, 

evaluations of admissibility of evidence, discussion of the Client’s role including possible 

testimony, and preparation of witnesses including the Client if necessary.  

15 Willingness to try cases.  

16 Advocacy skills.  

17 Follow any representation standards adopted by the Supreme Court (i.e. children 

requirements / adoptions).  

18 Appropriate ongoing training in Dependency Court processes and related fields.  



 

6 

 

II. REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS & DOCUMENTATION TO BE SUPPLIED 

A. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: To qualify as pre-qualified Indigent Attorney for 
assignment of Dependency cases with Gila County, Attorney must minimally possess all of 
the listed qualifications specified herein and provide documentation verifying same as 
noted herein.  

1. EDUCATION AND LICENSURE  

 

a) Applicant shall be a graduate of an ABA accredited law school;   

b) Applicant shall be a member in good standing with the State Bar of Arizona;   

c) Applicant shall be licensed by the State Bar of Arizona;   

d) Applicant shall maintain their good standing within the State Bar of Arizona as well as 

his/her licensure for the duration of contract award if accepted by Gila County as a 

qualified Attorney for Indigent Legal Attorney Services and for placement on its roster 

of qualified attorneys.  

e) Applicant must include with his/her application packet the following documentation:   

1) A copy of his/her diploma and/or copy of official transcripts from the accredited 

law school from which they graduated; and  

2) A copy of his/her State Bar of Arizona card.  

3) Copies of his/her insurance certificates, including any “riders” should applicant 

have previously been approved for contract and is now applying as a solo 

practitioner or is affiliated with a new law firm.  

 
2. EXPERIENCE  

 
a.  Applicant shall have at least one (1) year experience in one or more of the following 

categories of legal practice:  

1) Dependency or delinquency law  

2) Child welfare system  

3) Family law  

4) Mental health  

5) Guardianships  

 

b. Additionally, Applicant should be familiar with services and/or resources in the areas of:  

1)  Mental health for parents, infants, toddlers, and adolescents 2) Substance abuse  

3) Domestic violence  

4) Education   

5) Job / Vocational training  

 

c.    Please Note: Applicants submitting application to this on-going solicitation for indigent 
attorney services for the assignment to dependency cases hereunder, and who specify a 
preference for case assignments representing children shall be required to meet 
the requirements established by State of Arizona Supreme Court Administrative 



 

7 

 

Order No. 2011-17 and State of Arizona Rules of Procedure for Juvenile Courts, Rule 
40.1, and any other standards of representation that may be adopted.    

 

A. CASE CATEGORIES AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS: Following are the case 
assignments to be made directly from the Bench, Assignments may be in Payson or Globe, 
but the Court will consider geographic preference and establish a degree of consistency 
with appointments in each locale. 

 

1.  JUVENILE DEPENDENCY: The Attorney will provide attorney services for the sum of 
ONE-THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) PER APPOINTMENT and THREE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($300.00) PER RECERTIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT. “Recertification” 
means that the Attorney is still appointed to the matter one (1) year after the date of 
original appointment. The Attorney may invoice for Recertification on an annual 
basis thereafter for the duration of the appointment. 

2. PROBATE: The Attorney will provide legal services for appointments as follows: 

i FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS ($400.00) PER APPOINTMENT as Attorney or 
Investigator in a Probate (Guardianship/Conservatorship) case; 

ii FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) PER APPOINTMENT as Attorney in a 
Probate (Guardianship/Conservatorship) case in which inpatient authority is 
granted (even if not exercised); 

3. “BEST INTEREST ATTORNEY”: The Attorney will provide legal services for the sum of 
ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) PER APPOINTMENT. 

4. GUARDIAN AD LITEM: The Attorney will provide legal services for the sum of ONE 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) PER APPOINTMENT. 

 

Under no circumstances may Attorney solicit outside compensation from clients assigned to 
Attorney under this Agreement for work to be performed by Attorney under this solicitation.  
The Court understands and agrees, however, that Attorney is available and able to represent 
private clients.  In addition, it is understood that the Court neither agrees to use Attorney 
exclusively nor to guarantee Attorney a specific number of appointments under this solicitation.  

a. Attendant Case Costs: Attorney shall not bill for nor be compensated for:  

1. Travel time between Attorney’s residence, office, or other base of operation and the Court 
or other work site in Gila County.    

2. Internal administrative costs related to file preparation, billing, opening or closing files, 
copies, establishing billing files, administrative communications with the Court, or any 
other similar administrative procedures that do not involve legal skills.    

Ordinary Expenses. The parties contemplate and agree that ordinary expenses involved in 
the representation of indigent clients under this Agreement are not reimbursable, but instead 
are included in the contract prices specified herein.  Ordinary expenses include, but are not 
limited to:   



 

8 

 

- Office overhead   

- Facsimiles   

- Postage   

- Copying expenses   

- Computer and Westlaw/Lexis charges   

- Messenger services   

- Support staff expenses   

- Office supplies   

- Mileage, travel and lodging expenses   

Other Expenses: The following non-routine expenses, relating to Dependency matters only, 
can be reimbursed by the Court: mileage, at the County rate, for travel exceeding one-hundred 
(100) miles outside of the Globe and / or Payson municipalities for the purpose of a home 
visit; costs associated with personal service of process; and cost for services associated with 
service by publication. Non-routine cost reimbursement must be substantiated by supporting 
documentation. 
 
Extraordinary Expenses. Before incurring any extraordinary expenses, Attorney must file 
an appropriate Motion.  An approval of such a request shall specifically set forth the 
authorized expenditures and monetary limits of such authorization.    

- “Extraordinary expenses” include, but are not limited to:   
o Transcripts   
o Clothing for an indigent client   
o Depositions   
o o Lodging - per diem   
o o Witness fees   
o o Subpoena fees   
o o An unusually large number of copies or phone calls.    

  
C. Failure to obtain prior approval will result in non-payment for any expenditure and 

the debt shall become the personal responsibility of the Attorney. At the sole 
discretion of the Court Administrator or Court, any such non-approved costs which 
are incurred, may be paid and deducted from amounts otherwise due and owing to 
the Attorney.     

 
a. If billed expenses exceed the Court Order approved amount for the expenditure, the 

County is not obligated to pay any such overage and the overage becomes the personal 
responsibility of the Contractor.    

b. At the sole discretion of the Court Administrator, any such cost exceeding authorization 
which is incurred, may be paid and deducted from amounts otherwise due and owing to 
the Contractor.    

c. When billing for reimbursement, receipts for all expenses must be attached along with 
any Order approving the expenditure. All expenses must be approved by the Contract 
Administrator prior to incurring the expense.   
  

Sample contracts for all of the categories as described under II. B above are attached to this 
solicitation and applicants are encouraged to review the provisions of, and be familiar with, 
the specifications prior to applying for a contract award.  



 

9 

 

 RESPONSE CERTIFICATION 
 
 
___________________________ 
(DATE) 
 
 
 
Purchasing Services Department 
 
 
 
 
The undersigned certifies that to the best of his or her knowledge: (check one) 
 

 There is no officer or employee of Gila County who has, or whose relative has, a substantial 
interest in any Contract award subsequent to this Response. 

 
 The names of any and all public officers or employees of Gila County who have, or whose 

relative has, a substantial interest in any Contract award subsequent to this Response are 
identified by name as part of the submittal 

 
 
 
The undersigned further certifies that their firm (check one)  IS or  IS NOT currently 
debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment by any federal or state entity.  The undersigned 
agrees to notify the County of any change in this status, shall one occur, until such time as an award 
has been made under this procurement action. 
 
In compliance with Request for Qualifications No. 111020 Indigent Legal Attorney Services for Gila 
County, and after carefully reviewing all the terms and conditions imposed therein, the undersigned 
agrees to furnish such services in accordance with the specifications/scope of work according to 
the Proposal submitted or as mutually agreed upon by subsequent negotiation. 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
(signed)     (by) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
(firm)      (title) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
(address)    (phone number) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

10 

 

CONTRACT 
 

a. The County reserves the right to award the total proposal, to reject any and all proposals 
and to waive any informality or technical defects if, in the County’s sole judgment, the best 
interest of the County be so served; 

b. The County reserves the right to request clarification of information from any firm 
submitting a proposal; 

c. The County reserves the right to cancel this RFQ at any time prior to contract award 
without obligation in any manner for proposal preparation, interview, fee negotiation or 
other marketing costs associated with this RFQ; 

d. The Contract resulting from acceptance of a proposal by the County shall be in a form 
supplied by the County and shall reflect the specifications of this RFQ.  

e. The County reserves the right to reject any proposed agreement that does not conform to 
the specification contained in this RFQ, and which is not approved by the County Attorney’s 
office; 

f. The County shall not be responsible for any costs incurred by the firm in preparing, 
submitting or presenting its response to the RFQ; 

g. Selection criteria of the RFQ will be evaluated on Professional Qualifications and 
Experience; 

h. All bid documents are public record and subject to disclosure. 
 
COST LIABILITY 
 
 The County assumes no responsibility or liability for costs incurred by the respondent prior 
to the execution of a Professional Services Agreement. The liability of the County is limited to the 
terms and conditions outlined in this Agreement. 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11 

 

 
 
 

(SAMPLE) PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT NO. xxxxxx 
LEGAL SERVICES 

 

I. GENERAL STATEMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ________ day of __________________, 2021, by and 
between the Superior Court in Gila County, hereinafter designated the COURT, LAW OFFICES OF 
XXXXXX  XXXXXX   of the City of   XXXXX, County of     XXXXX   , State of Arizona, hereinafter called 
the ATTORNEY, for professional legal defense services from JULY 1, 2021 TO JUNE 30, 2022. The 
Attorney has a professional duty to the Court, to his/her clients, and to opposing counsel in 
providing legal services for persons found to be indigent or for whom the Court is required to 
provide legal counsel in Gila County. 
 
 By signing this Contract, the Attorney agrees to maintain the credentials necessary to 
practice law in the courts of the State of Arizona and to do so in a competent, professional, ethical 
manner and as an officer of the Court at all times. 
 
 The Attorney has a duty to the Court to be prepared, prompt, comply with Court rules, 
submit timely reports, attend meetings with the Court, accept appointments within the main 
category of assignment as well as those outside the main category when circumstances require, and 
complete cases assigned during the term of the contract. 
 
 The Attorney has a duty to his/her clients to keep them advised of the status of their cases, 
be available for consultation, and to diligently represent their interests. 
 
 The Attorney has a duty to opposing counsel to cooperate with scheduling and prompt 
disposition of the case. 
 
 

II. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

A.  Period Covered:  It is understood between the undersigned attorney, LAW OFFICES OF 
XXXXXX  XXXXXX   and the SUPERIOR COURT OF GILA COUNTY that the attorney will accept 
appointments to represent persons found to be indigent or for whom the Court is required to 
provide legal counsel in Gila County, from JULY 1, 2021 TO JUNE 30, 2022. 

 
The County shall have the option to renew the contract for up to three (3) additional one (1) year 
periods, upon agreement of both parties. 
 

B. Termination:  Upon thirty (30) days written notice, either party may terminate this 
agreement without cause. The attorney would be expected to complete any case assignments that 
were made prior to such termination. 

 
In the event of formal discipline of the Attorney by the State Bar of Arizona, The Court may suspend 
or terminate the contract. 
 

C.  A.R.S. §38-511:  This agreement is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-
511. 



 

12 

 

D. Arizona Legal Workers Act:  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401, Provider hereby warrants 
that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement  comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Provider’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 
(A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Provider shall further ensure that each 
approved subcontractor who performs any work for Provider under this Agreement likewise 
complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.  County shall have the right at any time to 
inspect the books and records of Provider and any approved subcontractor performing services 
under this Agreement in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws. 

Any breach of Provider’s or any approved subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the 
State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be 
a material breach of this Agreement subjecting Provider to penalties up to and including suspension 
or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by an approved subcontractor, and the 
subcontractor is suspended or terminated as a result, Provider shall be required to take such steps 
as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided under the 
subcontract or retain an approved replacement subcontract as soon as possible so as not to delay 
completion of Provider’s obligations. 

 
Provider shall advise each approved subcontractor of County’s rights, and the 

subcontractor’s obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each subcontract 
substantially in the following form: 

 
“Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract 

comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the 
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the 
Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these 
requirements.   

Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of 
this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of 
this contract.” 

 
  III. COMPENSATION, COSTS, AND BILLING PROCEDURES 
 
A. JUVENILE DEPENDENCY REPRESENTATION: The Attorney will provide attorney 

services for the sum of ONE-THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) PER 
APPOINTMENT and THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($300.00) PER 
RECERTIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT. “Recertification” means that the Attorney 
is still appointed to the matter one (1) year after appointment. The Attorney 
may invoice for Recertification on an annual basis thereafter for the duration of 
the appointment. 
Total compensation for representation shall not exceed XXXXXX DOLLARS for the 
period of the contract without advance written authorization.  
 

B. PROBATE REPRESENTATION: The Attorney will provide legal services for 
appointments as follows: 

i. FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS ($400.00) PER APPOINTMENT as Attorney 
or Investigator in a Probate (Guardianship/Conservatorship) case; 



 

13 

 

ii. FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) PER APPOINTMENT as Attorney in 
a Probate (Guardianship/Conservatorship) case in which inpatient 
authority is granted (even if not exercised); 

Total compensation for representation shall not exceed XXXXXX DOLLARS for the 
period of the contract without advance written authorization.  
 

b. “BEST INTEREST ATTORNEY” REPRESENTATION: The Attorney will provide 
legal services for the sum of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) PER 
APPOINTMENT. 

Total compensation for representation shall not exceed XXXXXX DOLLARS for the 
period of the contract without advance written authorization.  

 
c. GUARDIAN AD LITEM REPRESENTATION: The Attorney will provide legal 

services for the sum of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) PER 
APPOINTMENT. 

Total compensation for representation shall not exceed XXXXXX DOLLARS for the 
period of the contract without advance written authorization.  

 
 B.  Court Payment of Costs and Expenses: 
 
  1) Routine / Non-routine expenses: Routine expenses such as photocopying, 
postage, travel and other operating expenses are not reimbursed by the Court, and are a personal 
expense of the attorney. The following non-routine expenses, relating to Dependency matters only, 
can be reimbursed by the Court: mileage, at the County rate, for travel exceeding one-hundred 
(100) miles outside of the Globe and / or Payson municipalities for the purpose of a home visit; 
costs associated with personal service of process; and cost for services associated with service by 
publication. Non-routine cost reimbursement must be substantiated by supporting documentation. 
 
  2) Extraordinary Costs: The Attorney should file a motion in advance requesting 
approval for any extraordinary costs he/she wants paid by the County. This includes such items as 
transcripts (besides Grand Jury or appeal transcripts), expert witness fees, depositions, 
investigators, or any other extraordinary cost. 
 
  3) Personal Expense: Costs incurred without prior approval of the Court may be 
treated as a personal expense of the attorney. 
 
  4) Costs Which Could Have Been Avoided: Court expenses which could have been 
avoided had the Attorney been prepared, such as jury costs for a trial that did not go, Rule 11 
evaluation costs for which the defendant did not show because of failure of the attorney to timely 
obtain an Order for Transport or reschedule the appointment, expedited transcripts, etc., may be 
charged back to the attorney as a personal cost. 
 

C.  Billing Procedures for Legal Services Provided for Indigents: 
 
  1)  Submission and Payment: The Attorney may submit a monthly invoice for each 
month’s services.  
 
 
 



 

14 

 

  2)  Statistical Report:  The Court requires the attorney to prepare a statistical 
report summarizing his/her appointments and case activity each month on a statistical recap form 
and backup list of cases. Invoices are to be submitted only after the previous month’s statistical 
report has been completed. The statistical report is due by the 10th of each month for the preceding 
month’s appointments and concluded cases. (For example, appointments and dispositions made 
during July would be due by August 10). The statistical report for the previous month should be 
submitted with the bill for the current month’s services. (For example, the bill for services in August 
would be submitted with the statistical information for July). 
 

IV. CONTRACT CATEGORY, CONFLICTS, REASSIGNMENT 

A. Contract Category:  To the extent practicable, the attorney will be primarily assigned 
Dependency cases, and will be subject to appointments in other contract categories, 
including but not limited to Domestic Relations, Guardianship/Conservatorship, 
Delinquency, Mental Health and Public Health cases, (due to problems such as conflicts 
or insufficient number of contract attorneys for that category or geographical area) 
which may be made from time to time. 
 

 Some of the Rule 32 issues and appeals may also be assigned to him/her rather than to the contract 
attorneys who are assigned appellate work. 
 
 B.  Reassignment of Case:  When the Attorney has been allowed to withdraw because the 
case is assigned to another Attorney, the withdrawn Attorney should promptly turn over his/her 
file to the new Attorney and notify him/her of any pending hearing dates and the status of the case. 
Assignment to a case that is outside the normal category covered by this contract is not sufficient 
grounds for reassignment. 
 
 C.  Rule 32’s and Appeals:  Separate contracts exist for Rule 32’s and appeals. However, 
circumstances may exist which would warrant a Rule 32 or appeal being assigned to a regular 
contract attorney and not the appellate contract attorneys, and such assignments may be made to 
the regular contract attorney without additional compensation. 
 

V. SPECIFIC DUTIES OF COUNSEL 

 A.  Readiness and Promptness for Court: 
 
  1)  Readiness and Promptness: The Attorney agrees to be prepared and appear 
in Court promptly at or before the time set for hearings and not to rely on Court staff to notify 
or have to locate him/her when court is ready to proceed. The attorney agrees to discuss the case 
with her client before the time set for hearing, not at the time set for hearing. 
 
  2)  Law and Motion Day:  The Attorney agrees to be present for Law and Motion 
day and Pre-trial Conferences as scheduled. If a substitute attorney is necessary, the attorney 
agrees to arrange for and update the substitute on case status so the hearing can proceed rather 
than be continued. 
 
  3)  Delays:  In the event the attorney will be late due to unforeseen circumstances, 
he/she agrees to communicate the delay and an anticipated arrival time as soon as practicable. 
 
 B.  Meetings with the Court:  The Attorney agrees to attend administrative meetings with 
the Court when, and as, scheduled regarding the court calendar, procedures, and contract issues. 
 
 



 

15 

 

 C.  Statistical Reports:  The Attorney agrees to accurately complete and submit the 
caseload and summary statistical information regarding the Attorney’s appointments each month 
as required by the Court when submitting monthly bills for services rendered. 
 

D. Case Processing: The Attorney acknowledges that the Arizona Supreme Court has 
adopted case processing time standards. The Attorney agrees to assist the Court in 
working on and obtaining those goals to the extent that it does not compromise the 
Attorney’s ability to advocate. 
 

 E.  Dependency Cases: The Attorney acknowledges that the Arizona State Legislature 
enacted new legislation that became effective January 01, 1999 and changed the procedure for 
dependency cases. The Attorney agrees to become familiar with these procedures, and accept 
appointments made to a dependency case when circumstances necessitate such appointments. The 
Attorney further agrees to abide by all applicable provisions of the Arizona Rules of Procedure for 
the Juvenile Court.  
 
 F.  Contact with and Representation of Client: 
  1)  Office:  The Attorney agrees to maintain regular office hours and have a method 
for clients to contact him/her in an emergency outside of regular hours. Preferably, the office will 
be in the area the Attorney is serving. 
 
  2)  Communication and Representation:  The Attorney agrees to promptly return 
phone calls and respond to correspondence, to obtain clients’ consent before requesting that 
hearings and appointments be rescheduled, to interview witnesses, to issue subpoenas, and in 
other ways deal professionally with the client and diligently represent the clients’ interests.  
 
  3)  Calendar:  The Attorney agrees to calendar her cases when they are scheduled 
for hearing, rather than relying on court staff to advise what is scheduled for him/her each week. 
The Attorney agrees to be the primary source of case information for the client. (Clients calling the 
Court trying to ascertain case information, clients failing to appear for hearings due to lack of 
notice, or clients appearing for hearings that have been changed is an indication of unavailability of 
counsel). 
 
  4)  Completion of Case:  The Attorney agrees to continue to represent any client on 
cases to which he/she was appointed during the term of this contract until the case is completed or 
he/she is relieved of that representation by order of the Court, regardless of the termination of the 
contract, and without additional compensation. 
 
 G.  Attorney Files:  The Attorney should retain his/her file for no less than five (5) years 
after the last action taken in the case. 
 

VI. PLEADINGS AND CASE MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES 

 A.  Motions and Orders: 

  1)  Timeliness and Basis:  Motions should be filed sufficiently in advance of 
trials/hearings to allow for response and reply. The Attorney acknowledges the requirements of 
good cause, supported by specific legal and factual basis, in submitting motions to the Court. 
 
  2)  Copies:  Copies of motions should be sent to the assigned judge and the court 
administrator. 
 
  3)  Oral Argument:  If oral argument is requested, a form of notice wherein the 



 

16 

 

court administrator may insert the date and time for oral argument to be conducted should be 
submitted. 
  4)  Telephone Conference:  Prior approval by the Court to conduct oral argument 
by telephone conference call should be obtained, and the requesting attorney is responsible for 
initiating the call to the Court at the date and time scheduled for hearing. 
 
  5)  Non-Appearance Calendar:  Motions filed without request for oral argument 
and which do not require an evidentiary hearing will be placed on the Court’s non-appearance 
calendar for submission to the Court after the time for response and reply have passed. 
 
  6)  Expedited Action:  If action is sought prior to the expiration of the time for 
response and reply, the motion should clearly identify that fact and indicate whether the prosecutor 
or any co-defendant objects to the requested relief.  
 
  7)  Orders:  Orders for the Court’s signature should be prepared as a separate 
document containing the standard case heading, and should not be included as an integral part of 
stipulations, motions, or other pleadings.  
  
B.  Facsimile: 
 
  1)  Temporary Pleadings:  Facsimile documents are intended to serve as 
temporary pleadings only. 
 
  2)  Originals:  After faxing a document, the Attorney should submit an original 
document (without modification) within ten (10) days of transmission of the facsimile so that the 
Clerk can substitute the original for the facsimile in the Court file. 
 
  3)  Consent:  If a facsimile needs to serve as an original, the Attorney should obtain 
consent of the assigned judge to submit the facsimile as an original. 
 
 C.  Pre-Trial Conference: 
 
  1)  Personal Attendance:  The Attorney and the defendant must be personally 
present. 
 
  2)  Discovery:  The Attorney should complete discovery by pre-trial conference so 
that motions to compel, motions for sanctions, etc., are unnecessary, and hearing does not need to 
be continued. 
 
  3)  Hearing Motions:  Simple motions that do not require evidentiary hearing can 
be heard at the pre-trial conference, and should be filed with sufficient time for response before the 
pre-trial conference. Motions to suppress, voluntariness hearings, and other such matters requiring 
evidentiary hearings will be scheduled for a time other than the pre-trial conference. 
 
  4)  Continuances:  Continuances of the pre-trial conference are to be avoided. 

 

D. Delinquency Cases:  All contract attorneys, not just those who primarily are assigned 
to represent juveniles in delinquency matters, are subject to being “on call” for 
representing juveniles who have been detained at accelerated hearings held on 
weekends and holidays. 
 

 



 

17 

 

 E.  Dependency Cases:  Dependency cases require that the attorney and parties personally 
appear at accelerated pre-hearing conferences and preliminary protective hearings. Attorney 
should familiarize themselves with dependency procedures that became effective on January 01, 
1999. 
 
 F.  Motions to Continue: 
 
  1)  Procedure:  Continuances should be avoided and only sought for good cause. 
When expedited action is requested, the Attorney should contact the defendant, any co-defendants’ 
counsel, and prosecutor, advise them of the request, and indicate in the motion whether they object 
to the continuance. 
 
  2)  Order:  If there will be no objection, the Attorney should also submit an Order 
Continuing for the Courts’ signature. The Attorney should not assume a continuance will be granted 
because there is no objection and is responsible for ensuring that a continuance was granted and 
new dates have been assigned. 
 
  3)  Sanctions:  Sanctions, including jury costs and other court costs, may be 
imposed for late requests for continuances, whether granted or not. 
 

 G. Motions and Orders to Transport: 
   
  1)  Preparation:  When a defendant is in custody in Gila County, the Attorney 
should prepare a motion and order to transport so the defendant can be transported to 
proceedings, such as Rule 11 evaluations, outside of Gila County. When a defendant is in custody 
outside of Gila County, the Attorney should prepare a motion and order to transport so the 
defendant can be transported to any pre-trial hearings, trial, or post-trial hearings before the Court 
in Gila County.  
 
  2)  Time:  Motions and orders to transport should be prepared sufficiently in 
advance to permit Court action and notice to the Sheriff’s Office to accomplish timely 
transportation. 
 
  3)  Videoconferencing:  The Court may utilize videoconferencing for Court 
hearings. The Attorney is to become familiar with policies and procedures for videoconferencing 
when it is used. 
 
 
 H.  Interpreters: 

  1)  Notice:  The Attorney should give the Court at least one-week advance notice 
when an interpreter will be necessary to ensure an interpreter can be scheduled. 
 
  2)  Permission:  The Attorney should get court permission in advance to use an 
interpreter at court expense for interviews, depositions, etc. 
 
  3)  Attorney Presence:  The Attorney should be present with the interpreter during 
interviews, depositions, and attorney-client discussions. 
 
 
 
 



 

18 

 

 
 

 
 

GILA COUNTY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT NO. xxxxxx 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall 
include original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly 
executed by the parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written. 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board   Law Offices of Xxxxxx  xxxxxx      

 

 

       
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

____________________________________ 
The Gila County Attorney’s Office  
 
 
 
 
 
       
Timothy Wright, Presiding Judge 



   
ARF-6329   Regular Agenda Item     2. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health
Department: Health & Emergency Management
Fiscal Year: 2019-2022 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

1/1/2018 -
12/31/2022

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Revised Amendment Nos. 2 and 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement
(Contract No. ADHS18-177678) with the Arizona Department of Health
Services (ADHS).

Background Information
An Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) (Contract No. ADHS13-041539)
with the ADHS expired on December 31, 2017. IGA (Contract No.
ADHS18-177678) replaced the previous IGA and it was fully executed by
the Board of Supervisors and the ADHS on February 1, 2018, which
allows the Gila County Health Division to continue to operate an
immunization program for the residents of Gila County from January 1,
2018, to December 31, 2022. Amendment No. 1 was approved by the Gila
County Board of Supervisors on July 23, 2019.

Revised Amendment No. 2 to the IGA revises and replaces the Price Sheet,
and revises the Scope of Work as follows: ADHS changed the order of the
items changed. The new order is:

1.1Scope of Work - Page 19, Provision 4.12, Item 4.12.2 is added as
follows: Provide Supplemental Flu activities as defined by the County
Health Department and approved by the Immunization Program Office,
to increase the flu vaccination rates for adults, especially high-risk
adults, within the county. These efforts are intended to help keep
hospitalization rates for flu down during the COVID-19 pandemic.



1.2 The Price Sheet is revised and replaced by the Price Sheet of this
Amendment Two

Amendment No. 3
1.1 Scope of Work, Page Nineteen (19), Provision 4.12, VPD Outbreak and
Pandemic Preparedness, added items 4.12.3 and 4.12.4 that are hereby
revised in this Amendment Three (3) to read:

4.12.3 Improve vaccine cold storage capacity, to include the purchase of
storage units (refrigerator, freezer [NOT ultra-cold freezer]), generators,
portable refrigeration units. These efforts are intended to help keep
vaccines viable during the COVID-19 pandemic.

4.12.4 Increase capacity for data entry and reminder recall activities, to
include but not limited to additional staffing, or purchase of hardware
and software equipment to accomplish this task. These efforts are
intended to help track immunization data during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Evaluation
By continuing with our immunization program, the Health Division can
continue to administer the Vaccines for Children Programs (VFC) and all
publicly-purchased vaccines; assess and improve immunization coverage
levels; assure access to vaccines for eligible populations in Gila County,
and prevent and control vaccine-preventable diseases. Amendment No. 2
will provide Supplemental Flu activities as defined by the County Health
Division ad, approved by the Immunization Program Office, to increase
the flu vaccination rates for adults, especially high-risk adults within the
County. These efforts are intended to help keep hospitalization rates for
flu down during the COVID-19 pandemic. Amendment No. 3 will allow
improvement of the vaccine cold storage capacity to keep COVID-19
vaccines viable. Increase capacity for data entry and reminder recall
activities to help track immunizations during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Conclusion
It is important that this amendment to the IGA be approved by the Board
of Supervisors in order to allow the Gila County Health Division to
continue to operate the Immunization Program for the residents of Gila
County.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Management



It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Management
Department Director that the Board of Supervisors approves Amendment
No. 2 and Amendment No. 3 to the IGA (Contract No. ADHS18-177678)
with the ADHS for additional funding in the amount of $202,500 as
needed by June 30, 2021.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment Nos. 2 and 3 to
an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS18-177678) between
Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health Services to replace the
Price Sheet which includes funding for an additional $202,500 as needed
through June 30, 2021, and to revise the Scope of Work. (Michael
O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Amendment 3
Amendment 2
Amendment 1
IGA Contract No. ADHS18-177678 executed



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

Amendment 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18

th
 Ave Suite 530

Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Contract No.: 
ADHS18-177678 

IGA Amendment No: 3 
Arizona Procurement Portal Amendment No.: 3 

Procurement Officer 
Nicole Marquez 

1 

IMMUNIZATION SERVICES 

It is mutually agreed that the Intergovernmental Agreement referenced is amended as follows: 

1. Pursuant to Terms and Conditions, Page Seven (7), Provision Six (6), Contract Changes; the Intergovernmental
Agreement is amended to revise the following:

1.1 Scope of Work, Page Nineteen (19), Provision 4.12, VPD Outbreak and Pandemic Preparedness, added items
4.12.3 and 4.12.4 that are hereby revised in this Amendment Three (3) to read: 

4.12.3 Improve vaccine cold storage capacity, to include purchase of storage units (refrigerator, freezer [NOT 
ultra-cold freezer]), generators, portable refrigeration units. These efforts are intended to help keep 
vaccines viable during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

4.12.4 Increase capacity for data entry and reminder recall activities, to include but not limited to additional 
staffing, or purchase of hardware and software equipment to accomplish this task. These efforts are 
intended to help track immunization data during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Continued on next page 

All other provisions of this agreement remain unchanged. 

GILA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

Contractor Name: Authorized Signature 

1400 E. ASH ST.

Address: Print Name 

GLOBE ARIZONA 85501 

City State Zip Title 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public agency attorney has determined 
that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and 
authority granted under the laws of Arizona. 

This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be 
effective the date indicated.  The Public Agency is hereby 
cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide any 

material, service or construction under this IGA until the IGA has 
been executed by an authorized ADHS signatory.  

State of Arizona 

Signature Date 

Signed this  day of  2020. 

Print Name 
Procurement Officer 

Contract No.: ADHS18-177678, which is an Agreement between public agencies, has 
been reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney, who 
has determined that it is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted 

under the laws of the State of Arizona.  

Signature Date 

Assistant Attorney General 

Print Name 

Woody Cline

Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors

Gila County Attorney's Office



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18

th
 Ave Suite 530 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: 
ADHS18-177678 

IGA Amendment No: 3 
Arizona Procurement Portal Amendment No.: 3 

Procurement Officer 
Nicole Marquez 

 

2 
 

 
1.2 The Price Sheet is revised to include with the Price Sheet of this Amendment Three (3); 

 
 

PRICE SHEET 

Activity Frequency 
Unit 
Rate 

Unit of 
Measure 

Total 

Total Personnel/ERE; 
Salary/Fringe – May claim only salary 
and fringe benefits for immunization 
program staff/other staff who work to 
meet contract requirements 

Yearly N/A Total Up to $50,000.00 

Immunization Visit for children zero (0) 
to eighteen (18) years of age who 
meet VFC eligibility requirements. Do 
not include visits for insured children. 

Quarterly 
 

$50.00 Per Visit 

As approved by ADHS 
and authorized by 

purchase order 

Immunization Visit for adults nineteen 
(19) years of age and older who meet 
VFA eligibility requirements. Do not 
include visits for insured adults  

Quarterly, when specific 
VFA funds are available 

$50.00 Per Visit 

Immunization Completion report for 
children zero (0) to twenty-four (24) 
months of age for the 4:3:1:3:3:1:4 
series 

Quarterly $100.00 
Per Series 
Completion 

Perinatal Hepatitis B Case 
Management – Prenatal 

Quarterly $300.00 Per Case 

Perinatal Hepatitis B Case 
Management – Postnatal 

Quarterly $200.00 Per Case 

Immunization Visit for Flu Vaccine, in 
children and adults who meet VFC and 
VFA eligibility requirements. Do not 
include visits for insured children or 
adults. 

When specific pan flu 
vaccine funds are 

available 
$50.00 Per Visit 

IDR Submission – Preparation and 
Submittal of School/Child Care IDR by 
CHD nurse or in cooperation with 
school/child care personnel  

Optional $250.00 
Each/per grade 

level IDR 

IDR Validation – On-site visit to 
schools/child care facilities to validate 
IDR submission data 

Optional $50.00 
Each/per grade 
level validation 

 

Supplemental flu vaccination activities 
As needed by  
June 30, 2021 

NA NA 
Not to exceed allocation 

of $77,500 

Improve vaccine cold storage capacity; 
increase capacity for data entry and 
reminder recall activities 

As needed by  
June 30, 2021 

N/A Total 
Not to exceed 

allocation=$125,000 

 
  



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18

th
 Ave Suite 530 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: 
ADHS18-177678 

IGA Amendment No: 3 
Arizona Procurement Portal Amendment No.: 3 

Procurement Officer 
Nicole Marquez 

 

3 
 

 
1.3 Exhibit Three (3) has been added; 

 
EXHIBIT THREE 

Exhibit - 2 CFR 200.332 

§ 200.332 
Requirements for pass-through entities. 
All pass-through entities must: 
(a) Ensure that every subaward is clearly identified to the subrecipient as a subaward and includes the 
following information at the time of the subaward and if any of these data elements change, include the 
changes in subsequent subaward modification. When some of this information is not available, the 
pass-through entity must provide the best information available to describe the Federal award and 
subaward. 

  Prime Awardee:  Arizona Department of Health Services 

DUNS # 804745420 

  Federal Award Identification (Grant Number): 6 NH23IP922599-02-01 

  Subrecipient name (which must match the 
name associated with its unique entity 
identifier): Gila County  

  Subrecipient's unique entity identifier (DUNS #): 
  

  Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN, 
sometimes it’s the same as the Grant Number): 

NH23IP922599 

  Federal Award Date (see the definition of 
Federal award date in § 200.1 of this part) of 
award to the recipient by the Federal agency; 09/23/2020 

  Subaward Period of Performance Start and End 
Date; 07/01/2019 - 06/30/2024 

  Subaward Budget Period Start and End Date: 07/01/2020 - 06/30/2021 

  Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this 
action by the pass-through entity to the 
subrecipient (this is normally the contract 
amount): $125,000.00 

  Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the 
subrecipient by the pass-through entity 
including the current financial obligation (how 
much is available for contracts): $8,992,059.00 

  Total Amount of the Federal Award committed 
to the subrecipient by the pass-through entity $12,181,923.00 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18

th
 Ave Suite 530 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: 
ADHS18-177678 

IGA Amendment No: 3 
Arizona Procurement Portal Amendment No.: 3 

Procurement Officer 
Nicole Marquez 

 

4 
 

  Federal award project description, as required 
to be responsive to the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) 

CDC-RFA-IP19-1901 Immunization and Vaccines for  
Children  

  Name of Federal awarding agency, pass-
through entity, and contact information for 
awarding official of the Pass-through entity Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

  Assistance Listings number and Title; the pass-
through entity must identify the dollar amount 
made available under each Federal award and 
the Assistance Listings Number at time of 
disbursement: 

93.268 - Immunization Cooperative Agreements  

  Identification of whether the award is R&D   

  Indirect cost rate for the Federal award 
(including if the de minimis rate is charged) per 
§ 200.414   

   



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

Amendment 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Contract No.: 
ADHS18-177678 

IGA Amendment No: 2 
Arizona Procurement Portal Amendment No.: 2 

Procurement Officer 
Nicole Marquez 

1 

IMMUNIZATION SERVICES 

It is mutually agreed that the Intergovernmental Agreement referenced is amended as follows: 

1. Pursuant to Terms and Conditions, Page Seven (7), Provision Six (6), Contract Changes; the Intergovernmental
Agreement is amended to revise the following:

1.1 Scope of Work, Page Nineteen (19), Provision 4.12, added item 4.12.2 that is hereby revised in this Amendment
Two (2) to read: 

4.12.2 Provide Supplemental Flu activities as defined by the County Health Department and approved by the 
Immunization Program Office, to increase the flu vaccination rates for adults, especially high-risk adults, 
within the county. These efforts are intended to help keep hospitalization rates for flu down during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

Continued on next page 
All other provisions of this agreement remain unchanged. 

GILA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
Contractor Name: Authorized Signature 

1400 E. ASH ST.   
Address: Print Name 

GLOBE ARIZONA 85501 
City State Zip Title 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public agency attorney has determined 
that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and 
authority granted under the laws of Arizona. 

This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be 
effective the date indicated.  The Public Agency is hereby 
cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide any 
material, service or construction under this IGA until the IGA has 
been executed by an authorized ADHS signatory.  

State of Arizona 

Signature Date 
Signed this  day of  2020. 

Print Name 
Procurement Officer 

Contract No.: ADHS18-177678, which is an Agreement between public agencies, has 
been reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney, 
who has determined that it is in proper form and is within the powers and authority 
granted under the laws of the State of Arizona.  

Signature Date 

Assistant Attorney General 
Print Name 

Woody Cline

Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors

Gila County Attorney's Office



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

Amendment 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Contract No.: 
ADHS18-177678 

IGA Amendment No: 2 
Arizona Procurement Portal Amendment No.: 2 

Procurement Officer 
Nicole Marquez 

2 

1.2 The Price Sheet is revised and replaced with the Price Sheet of this Amendment Two (2); 

PRICE SHEET 

Activity Frequency Unit 
Rate 

Unit of 
Measure Total 

Total Personnel/ERE; 
Salary/Fringe – May claim only 
salary and fringe benefits for 
immunization program staff/other 
staff who work to meet contract 
requirements 

Yearly N/A Total Up to $50,000.00 

Immunization Visit for children zero 
(0) to eighteen (18) years of age
who meet VFC eligibility
requirements. Do not include visits
for insured children.

Quarterly $50.00 Per Visit 

As approved by ADHS 
and authorized by 

purchase order 

Immunization Visit for adults 
nineteen (19) years of age and 
older who meet VFA eligibility 
requirements. Do not include visits 
for insured adults  

Quarterly, when specific 
VFA funds are available $50.00 Per Visit 

Immunization Completion report for 
children zero (0) to twenty-four (24) 
months of age for the 4:3:1:3:3:1:4 
series 

Quarterly $100.00 Per Series 
Completion 

Perinatal Hepatitis B Case 
Management – Prenatal Quarterly $300.00 Per Case 

Perinatal Hepatitis B Case 
Management – Postnatal Quarterly $200.00 Per Case 

Immunization Visit for Flu Vaccine, 
in children and adults who meet 
VFC and VFA eligibility 
requirements. Do not include visits 
for insured children or adults. 

When specific pan flu 
vaccine funds are 

available 
$50.00 Per Visit 

IDR Submission – Preparation and 
Submittal of School/Child Care IDR 
by CHD nurse or in cooperation with 
school/child care personnel  

Optional $250.00 Each/per grade 
level IDR 

IDR Validation – On-site visit to 
schools/child care facilities to 
validate IDR submission data 

Optional $50.00 Each/per grade 
level validation 

Supplemental flu vaccination 
activities 

As needed by  
June 30, 2021 NA NA Not to exceed allocation 

of $77,500 

























































   

ARF-6347   Regular Agenda Item     2. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Michael O'Driscoll, Director
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services

Information
Request/Subject
To move forward with canceling the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Star
Valley and Gila County Animal Control and begin the process by sending the required
30-day notification to the Town of Star Valley.

Background Information
On July 10, 2009, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved an
Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Star Valley and Gila County Animal
Control to provide the Town of Star Valley with certain animal control services. The
Gila County Sheriff's Office has been providing law enforcement for the Town of Star
Valley since 2009. Also, since 2009 the Gila County Animal Control and Gila County
Sheriff's Office have worked together to provide animal control services to the Town of
Star Valley which included the Sheriff's Officers responding to after-hour calls, on
weekends, and holidays. Since 2009, there has been no service fee charged to the
Town of Star Valley to respond to these calls by the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Between January 1, 2018, to September 2020 the Gila County Sheriff's Office has
handled 184 animal control calls for after-hours, weekends, and holidays.

In September 2020, the Town of Star Valley contracted law enforcement services with
the Town of Payson Police Department ending the contract with the Gila County
Sheriff's Office. In October 2020, the Gila County Animal Control Manager was notified
by the Payson Police Department that they will not be dispatching officers to after
hour, weekend, and holiday calls.

Evaluation
Having the Gila County Animal Control staff begin to respond to all after hour,
weekend, and holiday animal control calls in the Town of Star Valley would have a
negative impact on the Gila County Animal Control budget. This would require
additional funding to cover the added overtime and weekend coverage to provide
animal control services to the Town of Star Valley. Therefore, it is the opinion of the
Gila County Health & Emergency Management Director that it makes good fiscal sense
to cancel the current IGA with the Town of Star Valley to provide animal control
services.

Conclusion
Having the Gila County Animal Control staff begin to respond to all after hour,



Having the Gila County Animal Control staff begin to respond to all after hour,
weekend, and holiday animal control calls in the Town of Star Valley would have a
negative impact on the Gila County Animal Control budget. This would require
additional funding to cover the added overtime and weekend coverage to provide
animal control services to the Town of Star Valley. Therefore, it is the opinion of the
Gila County Health & Emergency Management Director that it makes good fiscal sense
to cancel the current IGA with the Town of Star Valley to provide animal control
services.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation by the Gila County Health & Emergency Management
Director to have the Board of Supervisors begin the process of canceling the
Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Star Valley and Gila County Animal
Control and send the required 30-day cancellation notification to the Town of Star
Valley.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the cancellation of an Intergovernmental
Agreement between the Town of Star Valley and Gila County Animal Control which
includes sending the required 30-day cancellation notification to the Town of Star
Valley. (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
SV Gila Animal Control IGA









   
ARF-6364   Regular Agenda Item     2. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Health & Emergency Management
Fiscal Year: 2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-20-20 to 02-31-22 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 072920-Sub Grantee for COVID-19
Incident Management Support

Background Information
On October 20, 2020, the Board of Supervisors awarded Contract No.
072920-Sub-Grantee for COVID-19 Incident Management Support to
Command Solutions 4 in the amount of $442,000.

The Health and Emergency Management Department has been awarded a
$1.6 million dollar Expanded Laboratory Capacity (ELC) grant from the
Arizona Department of Health Services in order to complement, not
duplicate, existing COVID-19 funding provided to our jurisdiction. Gila
County will leverage and build upon our existing public health
infrastructure that emphasizes the coordination and critical integration of
disease investigation, epidemiology, contact tracing, and health
information systems in order to maximize the public health impact of
available resources. The primary goals will be to create a fully
implemented, scalable, and sustainable, comprehensive disease
investigation, detection, surveillance, and rapid response section to our
Health Emergency Operations Center (HEOC).

Evaluation
Amendment No.1 to Contract No. 072920-Sub-Grantee for COVID-19



Amendment No.1 to Contract No. 072920-Sub-Grantee for COVID-19
Incident Management Support will serve to increase the contract amount
from $442,000 to $882,000 and extend the term of the contract to
2/28/2022.

Our response to COVID-19 is trending to be a long-term event that will
require extended staffing of many positions in the Incident Command
Structure (ICS) that are not typically funded. Additionally, Health &
Emergency Management has the upcoming challenge to hopefully plan
mass vaccinations of all Gila County residents when and if a COVID-19
vaccination is approved for distribution. In order to meet the deliverables
of the new Expanded Lab Capacity funding, and continue our current
public health prevention work, Health and Emergency Management is
seeking approval of this amendment.

Conclusion
The Health & Emergency Management Department Director would like to
amend Contract No. 072920-Sub-Grantee for COVID-19 Incident
Management Support to increase the contract from $442,000 to
$882,000 and extend the term of the contract to 2/28/2022. Amendment
No. 1 to the contract will affect this change.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Finance Director and the Health &
Emergency Management Department Director that the Board of
Supervisors approves Amendment No. 1 to Contract No.
072920-Sub-Grantee for COVID-19 Incident Management Support to
increase the contract from $442,000 to $882,000 and extend the term of
the contract to 2/28/2022.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract
No. 072920-Sub-Grantee for COVID-19 Incident Management Support 
between Gila County and Command Solutions 4 to change the contract
from $442,000 to $882,000 and extend the term of the contract to
February 28, 2022. (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 072920
Contract No. 072920





































































   
ARF-6346   Regular Agenda Item     2. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Donna Demers, Purchasing Agent
Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Authorization to Publish a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous
Surplus Vehicles and Equipment.

Background Information
The County has the following miscellaneous surplus vehicles and
equipment that need to be sold:

2007 Ford Taurus SEL (A-009), 2004 Chevrolet Impala (A-010),  2005
Chevrolet Impala (A-017), 2000 Ford Expedition XLT (B-016), 2001 Ford
Explorer XLT (B-099), 2007 Chevrolet Trail Blazer LS (B-150), 2001 Chevy
Tahoe (B-119),  2002 GMV Sierra 1500 (B-124), 2003 Chevy Tahoe
(B-134), 2000 Craftco SS125 Sureshot Crack Sealer Machine (S-3), Cruise
Car All American Series Golf Cart (GC-1), 1993 Chevy 1500 4x4 (A-162),
2000 Ford Explorer (A-335), 1997 Chevy Blazer S-10 (AV001), 1981
Subaru SW (AV002), 1999 Nissan Pathfinder (AV003), 1999 Dodge
Caravan (AV004), 1994 Dodge Caravan (AV005), 2000 Chevy Cavalier
(AV006), 1997 Dodge Caravan (AV007), 1990 Cadillac Sedan De Ville
(AV008), 2000 Chevy 2500 4x4 (B-091), 1979 Mack Dump Truck (C-010),
2001 Dodge 3500 Van (C-040), 1992 Chevy 3500 (C-045), 1989 Chevy
Dump Truck (C-063), 1980 White Western Star Dump Truck (C-075),
1995 Ford Taurus (A-184), 1987 Chevy Water Truck (C-057), 1998 Dodge
2500 Truck (AV009), 1987 Kenworth Truck (C-032), 2010 Ford Explorer
(B-184), 1992 Dodge Caravan (AV010), 2006 Chrysler Town & Country
Van (A-115), 1975 Wells Trailer (C-T104), Bass Boat (AB-001), Grimmer
Schmidt 190D Compressor (N-013), NPK Hammer (AM-015), Hobart
Welder (0-004), Dayton 5000Watt Generator (L-025), Generator (AM-014)
Guard Rail Posts (AM-016), Dump Bed (AM-005), Spreader Box (AM-006),
Cattle Guards (AM-007), Snow Plow (AM-008), Loader Bucket (AM-009),
Meeting Room (AM-011), Sweeper (AM-013), Block and Tackle (A-001), 2 -
Weatherguard Inside the Bed Toolbox (ITBT-1 and ITBT-2), Coats Tire
Machine (AM-002), Delta Across the Bed Toolbox ( ATBT-2), 2 – 2 ½  T
Road Assy Lot ( MD-CL) 2 - Refrigerated Connex Boxes (RC#1 and RC#2),



Road Assy Lot ( MD-CL) 2 - Refrigerated Connex Boxes (RC#1 and RC#2),
Essick Concreate Mixer (CM-1), 2 – 10 Wheeler 12 Yard Dump Bed (DB#1
and DB#2), Fuel Storage Container and Stand (FSC&S), Hendricks
Walking Beam Suspension (HDTS-1), Eaton 7 Speed Manual
Transmission, (E7SP-1), Unknow Amount of Old Cable (CABLE-1),
Fruehauf Box Trailer Axle Assembly (TAS-1), Old Burner Box Pipes
(BBP-L), 2 – JOBOX Across the bed Tool Boxes (ATBT-L), Western P/U
Snow Plow Attachment (SPA-1), 2 – Cinder Spreader Parts (CSP-1 and
CSP-2), 10 Hole 9.00-R20 Wheel (SW#1), 10 Hole 10.00-R22 Wheel
(SW#2), 2 Sets of 4 – 6 Hole 10.00-15 Wheels (SOTW#1 and SOTW#2),
Screen AM-010, 10 – 40 Yard Roll Off Bins Used (LF001)

Evaluation
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-251(9), the Gila County Board of Supervisors may
sell at public auction after thirty days' previous notice is given by
publication in a newspaper of the County, any property belonging to the
County that the Board deems unnecessary for use by the County.

All interested parties are invited to bid on the miscellaneous surplus
material. Award will be conveyed to the highest bidder.

Conclusion
The public auction notice will be published in the Friday, January 22,
2021 edition of the Payson Roundup newspaper.

Recommendation
The County Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the publication of a Notice of Public Auction for the sale of
miscellaneous surplus vehicles and equipment.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the publication of a Notice of
Public Auction for the sale of miscellaneous surplus vehicles and
equipment. (Mary Springer)

Attachments
Public Auction



Gila County Public Vehicle Live Auction 

 

To be held in Globe Arizona on Saturday February 27, 2021 at Russell Gulch Landfill, 5891 E Hope Lane. 

Preview 8:00 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. 

Auction begins at 9:30 a.m. 

 

The County has the following miscellaneous surplus vehicles and equipment: 

2007 Ford Taurus SEL (A-009), 2004 Chevrolet Impala (A-010),  2005 Chevrolet Impala (A-017), 2000 

Ford Expedition XLT (B-016), 2001 Ford Explorer XLT (B-099), 2007 Chevrolet Trail Blazer LS (B-150), 2001 

Chevy Tahoe (B-119),  2002 GMV Sierra 1500 (B-124), 2003 Chevy Tahoe (B-134), 2000 Craftco SS125 

Sureshot Crack Sealer Machine (S-3), Cruise Car All American Series Golf Cart (GC-1), 1993 Chevy 1500 

4x4 (A-162), 2000 Ford Explorer (A-335), 1997 Chevy Blazer S-10 (AV001), 1981 Subaru SW (AV002), 

1999 Nissan Pathfinder (AV003), 1999 Dodge Caravan (AV004), 1994 Dodge Caravan (AV005), 2000 

Chevy Cavalier (AV006), 1997 Dodge Caravan (AV007), 1990 Cadillac Sedan De Ville (AV008), 2000 Chevy 

2500 4x4 (B-091), 1979 Mack Dump Truck (C-010), 2001 Dodge 3500 Van (C-040), 1992 Chevy 3500 (C-

045), 1989 Chevy Dump Truck (C-063), 1980 White Western Star Dump Truck (C-075), 1995 Ford Taurus 

(A-184), 1987 Chevy Water Truck (C-057), 1998 Dodge 2500 Truck (AV009), 1987 Kenworth Truck (C-

032), 2010 Ford Explorer (B-184), 1992 Dodge Caravan (AV010), 2006 Chrysler Town & Country Van (A-

115), 1975 Wells Trailer (C-T104), Bass Boat (AB-001), Grimmer Schmidt 190D Compressor (N-013), NPK 

Hammer (AM-015), Hobart Welder (0-004), Dayton 5000Watt Generator (L-025), Generator (AM-014) 

Guard Rail Posts (AM-016), Dump Bed (AM-005), Spreader Box (AM-006), Cattle Guards (AM-007), Snow 

Plow (AM-008), Loader Bucket (AM-009), Meeting Room (AM-011), Sweeper (AM-013), Block and Tackle 

(A-001), 2 - Weatherguard Inside the Bed Toolbox (ITBT-1 and ITBT-2), Coats Tire Machine (AM-002), 

Delta Across the Bed Toolbox ( ATBT-2), 2 – 2 ½  T Road Assy Lot ( MD-CL) 2 - Refrigerated Connex Boxes 

(RC#1 and RC#2), Essick Concreate Mixer (CM-1), 2 – 10 Wheeler 12 Yard Dump Bed (DB#1 and DB#2), 

Fuel Storage Container and Stand (FSC&S), Hendricks Walking Beam Suspension (HDTS-1), Eaton 7 Speed 

Manual Transmission, (E7SP-1), Unknow Amount of Old Cable (CABLE-1), Fruehauf Box Trailer Axle 

Assembly (TAS-1), Old Burner Box Pipes (BBP-L), 2 – JOBOX Across the bed Tool Boxes (ATBT-L), Western 

P/U Snow Plow Attachment (SPA-1), 2 – Cinder Spreader Parts (CSP-1 and CSP-2), 10 Hole 9.00-R20 

Wheel (SW#1), 10 Hole 10.00-R22 Wheel (SW#2), 2 Sets of 4 – 6 Hole 10.00-15 Wheels (SOTW#1 and 

SOTW#2), Screen AM-010, 10 – 40 Yard Roll Off Bins Used (LF001) 



   
ARF-6345   Regular Agenda Item     2. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2021 to 2025 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Authorization to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 110520-CRS-2P &
MC-800 Chip Seal Oils

Background Information
The Public Works Department uses an average of 400 tons of chip seal
oils during a fiscal year when many maintenance projects are planned.
Sometimes County equipment and staff are utilized, and other times
projects have been contracted out. The method for oil pricing for those
jobs was under County bid contracts, not cooperative contracts. In FY
2021, Public Works used a cooperative contract under Pinal County for oil
for the Pine chip seals. We compared three cooperative contract prices
and chose the least dollar per ton contract.

Evaluation
Transportation planning for the next five years includes more chip seals.
The Gila County Consolidated Roads Division can choose from cooperative
agreements already in place for suppliers of oil or use a County contract
bid for specific products. The past few projects have been accomplished
using cooperative contracts. To be fair with all of the suppliers, Public
Works is attempting to get a better competitive price by bidding ourselves.
If the price per oil ton is not in Public Works' favor for a certain job, we
will look for and select the best price in a cooperative agreement.

Conclusion
Public Works will search for the best product price to do the job and make



Public Works will search for the best product price to do the job and make
the transportation dollars stretch as far as possible. Approving this bid to
advertise will give us another opportunity to compare prices.

Recommendation
Public Works staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize
the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 110520.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request
for Proposals No. 110520-CRS-2P & MC-800 Chip Oils to be used by the
Gila County Consolidated Roads Division. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
Request for Proposals No. 110520



  
Bids √ Proposals

     

      

 
FUNDING PROJECTS:

6500 341 510 000
Fund 6510 Dept No. 341 Program 526 Location 000 Account

Estimated Cost:   $400,000
INTENT

Signed:  Date

DATE Department Receipt Placed on Agenda
Presented to Board Approved to Call
Delivered to Paper Paper Name
Advertised          From To
Closing Date Bid Award Date
Awarded To Pre-Bid Meeting Date
  

Department Name:

Date

Department Name:

Date

Finance Director Signature Date

1/20/2021

Department Head Signature

IV.  APPROVED 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL:     Only as necessary

Department Head Signature

Elected Official or Department Head

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY:    Action Dates

I.  DESCRIPTION:    List item(s) to be purchased, purpose, specific summary, estimated cost and funding  source.  

4300.82

12/8/2020

12/1/2020

 

Payson Roundup
12/15/2020

EXHIBIT "H"
GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS

11/5/2020

Qualifications

REQUEST NUMBER

RFP-110520

(For Procurement Use Only)

IS THIS A REQUEST FOR         Check one

various

All Departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Procurement Policy.  Item "I" of 
this form must be completed prior to such a request. The requesting Department is responsible for writing necessary specifications and 
routing them, with this form and a Bid Request to the Purchasing Department. A copy of the forms and specifications must be sent before 
routing begins. All Requests and Specifications will be in accordance with the Revised Statutes and the latest version of the Gila County 
Purchasing Policy and Procedures. 

Provide competitive bid pricing for CRS-2P and MC-800 chip seal oils

4300.82



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 0 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 110520 
 
 

CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Tommy C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
Tim Humphrey, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 
 

 

 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110520 

CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to provide CRS-2P 
& MC-800 Chip Seal Oils.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      3:00 PM, MST, January 20, 2021 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY  
    FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the finance 
department Copper Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later than 
the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  The 
prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the request for sealed proposals forms included in this RFP No. 110520 package 
and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-4355 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this request for proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Betty Hurst, 
Contracts Administrator, at bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-4355. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt: December 8, 2020 and, December 15, 2020 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board  
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office  
 
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
Notice of Solicitation.................................................................................................................................. 1 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................................ 4-5 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders ......................................................................................................... 6-8 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid .......................................................................................................................... 6 
 Amendments ............................................................................................................................................. 7 
 Inquiries ..................................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Late Proposals ........................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................................. 7-8 

General Terms and Conditions .............................................................................................................. 9-10 

 Award of Contract ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Protests ..................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Laws & Ordinances .................................................................................................................................. 10 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................................. 11-15 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................................ 11 
 Authority to Contract .............................................................................................................................. 11 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................................ 11 
 Contract Default ...................................................................................................................................... 11 
 Right to Assurance ................................................................................................................................... 12 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement .................................................................................. 12 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................................ 12 
 Termination of Contract .......................................................................................................................... 12 

Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................................ 13 
Insurance Requirements .................................................................................................................... 13-15 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications and Information ........................................................................ 16-17 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose .................................................................................................................. 16 
 Section 2.0; Proposal Pricing ................................................................................................................... 16 
 Section 3.0; Price Adjustments ........................................................................................................... 15-16 
 Section 4.0; Ordering & Delivery…………………………………………………………………………………………………….16-17 
 Section 5.0; Product Minimum Specifications………………………………………………………………………………..18-19 
 

Price Sheet……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….20-21 

Qualification and Certification Forms .................................................................................................. 22-23 

Reference List .......................................................................................................................................... 24 

No Collusion Form.................................................................................................................................... 25 

Certification Regarding Debarment……………………………………………………………………………………………………….26 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ..................................................................................................... 27 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................................... 28 

Israel Boycott Certification……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………29 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ................................................................................................... 30 

Offer Page ................................................................................................................................................ 31 

Acceptance of Offer Page ......................................................................................................................... 32 

 

 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 3 
 

 
INTENT 

                               

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR: CRS-2P & MC-800 Chip Seal Oils 
 

INTENT: 
 

     It is the intent of this Request for Proposals to establish a contract for a supplier to furnish CRS-2P and 

MC-800 Chip Seal Oil as specified to the Consolidated Roads Department at various locations of the Copper 

and Timber Regions of Gila County.     

 

 

 

 
 

 
For the purposes of this Request for Proposal, “Contractor” is defined as an individual or an entity 
who submits a bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 4 
 

 
 

SCOPE OF WORK:  
 

 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for the CRS-2P & MC-800 Chip Seal 

Oils.   

 

All specifications, and terms and conditions, under the Contract includes furnishing at least, but not limited 

to, minimum specification of product specifications (see attached:  Exhibit “C”), as specified on the Price 

Sheet pages for total price proposed.  Suppliers who agree to provide the minimum Proposal Specification 

for this product shall be considered for award. 

 

 

See page 20 of Bid Packet for Price Proposal. 

 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Betty Hurst, Contracts 

Administrator, (928) 402-4355,  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 5 
 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The county seeks sealed proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this request for sealed proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its proposal and qualification form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

scope of work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the proposal and qualifications forms provided in this request for proposal 

package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the proposal and to be 
submitted at the time of bid and made a part of this contract.  The county will use the proposal and 
qualifications form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the scope of services as set 
forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the price sheet and signature 
and offer page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of the 
Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the request for proposal shall be listed on the 
proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in proposals, or in the printed forms therefor, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the 
county may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 6 
 

 

Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this request for sealed proposal must be acknowledged by all 
Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the bidder checklist & addenda acknowledgment form, page 30. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this request for proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a request for proposals should refer to the appropriate request for proposals number, page, and paragraph 
number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the request for proposal number on the outside of an 
envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be 
opened until after the official request for proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., 
Wednesday, January 13, 2021 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will 
be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the notice for sealed proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late proposal shall be so notified. 
 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies (3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of the 
proposal and all forms shall be submitted.  The county will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation 
of proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy 
these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 7 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued… 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the offer and acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, county, 
city, town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 

place and prior to the time designated for receipts of proposals. 
 
3. The county is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP 
SEAL OILS”, Proposal No., “110520”, Date “January 20, 2021”, and time “3:00 PM” of proposal opening shall 
be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location 
designated in the notice.  Spiral bound proposals are not permitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 8 
 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interests 
of, and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any other provisions of the RFP, the county reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a request for proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the county contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature or providing similar services. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this request for proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose proposals are most advantageous to the county may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the county, within ten (10) days after the 

date of the notice of intent to award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a timely proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona 85501. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 9 
 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be governed and enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the act. 
 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, its agents, subcontractors, 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the county, i.e. by submitting proposals to 
this solicitation requiring sealed proposals, it does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 20 through 
31. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The county maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the county any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the request for proposal issued by the county and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement 
that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an 
official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency 
is a violation of the county procurement code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies 
available to the county inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and debarment of the 
Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 10 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
Contract Default 

A. The county, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or deliverables, or to perform the services 

within the times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the county terminates this contract in whole or part, the county may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the county for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said active purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to purchase 
supplies, equipment, and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms and 
conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations of 
the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The county, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  The county at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the county shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received 
by the county before the effective date of termination. 
 
The county reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The county will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor attempts to impose on the county material products, or 
workmanship, for services which are of unacceptable quality.  
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 11 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the county a positive indication that Contractor will perform to the 
requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the county created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of county, state and 
federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the county and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the county at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The county shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the county in the event this provision is exercised, and the county 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this contract and do not limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in this contract.  The county does not warrant that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor may 
purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 12 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

• General Aggregate $2,000,000 

• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

3. Automobile Liability 
Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 13 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
county does not warrant that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the county with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the county) as required by this contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The county project and contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The county reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the county separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified 
above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal contract 
amendment but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 14 
 

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS -TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 

Purpose 

It is the intent of Gila County to establish, by this Invitation for Proposal, the contract to purchase CRS-2P 

and MC-800 Chip Seal Oil. 

 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of 

the using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 

components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 

SECTION 1.0 

 

General Purpose 

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.  Supplier must provide product specification sheet. 

MSDS sheets must be included.  Please provide MSDS sheets in MS Word Format or Adobe Acrobat on 

compact disc or print them. 

 

1.2 Supplier should have adequate manufacturing / stocking facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 

 

1.3 All Proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the Proposal specifications. 

 

1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact quantities 

of any item set forth in the Proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or minimum 

amounts of purchase. 

 

1.5 Supplier shall review its Proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

1.5.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies with original signatures of all submissions. 

1.5.2 Qualification and Certification Forms  

1.5.3 References  

1.5.4 Pricing pages  

1.5.5 No Collusion in Bidding  

1.5.6 Intentions for Subcontracting  

1.5.7 Certification Regarding Debarment  

1.5.8 Israel Boycott Certification 

1.5.9 Legal AZ Works Act Compliance  

1.5.10 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment  

1.5.11 Offer Page  

 

 

 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 15 
 

 

Minimum Specifications continued… 

 

SECTION 2.0 

 

Proposal Pricing 

2.1 The Supplier shall submit the Proposal in the form of a firm unit price for each product.  Prices shall be 

in effect for the duration of the contract period at the unit prices bid, subject to the price adjustment in 

Section 3.0. Supplier shall incorporate all profit and discount into their price.  

 

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for a period of forty-

eight (48) months unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The Supplier 

agrees that Gila County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the contract for three (3) 

additional one (1) year periods.  In the event the County exercises such a right, all terms, conditions and 

provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period.  

 

2.3 Suppliers are encouraged to offer additional pricing for other related products, items, and/or 

components which are not specifically addressed as line items in the Invitation for Proposals.  Pricing 

offered should be noted on the price sheet in the format requested.  Pricing documents/catalogs shall 

accompany any additional pricing offered. 

 

SECTION 3.0 

 

Price Adjustments 

3.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract at the unit prices bid, with a price adjustment 

based upon the ADOT Price Adjustment for Bituminous Material Index. 

3.1.1 The term “bituminous material” as used herein shall include asphalt cement, liquid asphalt and 

emulsified asphalt. 

3.1.2 “Initial Cost” of bituminous materials as used herein shall mean the cost as determined by the 

ADOT Price Adjustment for Bituminous Material for the month bids are opened 

(https://azdot.gov/business/contracts-and-specifications/price-adjustment-bituminous-

material-and-diesel-fuel). 

 

3.2 The contract unit price for each item that contains bituminous material will be considered to include all 

costs of materials as required, including the “initial cost” of bituminous material.   

3.2.1 Compensation shall be adjusted (either increase or decrease) based on the dollar amount 

change in the ADOT Monthly Index from the month in which the contract was bid compared to 

the month in which the material was used, on a calendar month basis.  This adjustment will 

apply only to the amount of bituminous material used in the bid item and not to the overall unit 

cost.  The amount of bituminous material in each bid item will be as follows:  MC’s and liquid 

asphalt 100%, Terminal blend asphalt rubber 93%, Emulsions, Concentrate 60% (diluted 2:1 

40%, diluted 1:1 30%). 

 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 16 
 

 

Minimum Specifications continued… 

 

3.2.2 Additionally, the adjustment for compensation of bituminous materials will be based on the 

tons of bituminous material prior to dilution.  This adjustment will apply to bituminous material 

only. 

3.2.3 Bid price per ton shall be adjusted up or down by an amount equal to the percent of bituminous 

material multiplied by the dollar amount change in the ADOT Index from the month the bid was 

opened until the month material was used.  (Adjustment per ton = dollar amount change in 

ADOT Index X percentage of bituminous material.)  For example, assuming bids for terminal 

blend asphalt rubber were opened April 2008 when the ADOT Index for Bituminous Material 

was $395.00 per English ton, the terminal blend was actually used in June 2008, and that the 

ADOT Index in June is $415.00 per English ton, then the adjustment per ton would be calculated 

by taking the dollar amount change in the ADOT Index ($20.00) and multiplying it by the 

percentage of bituminous material of terminal blend asphalt rubber (%93).  Thus, the bid price 

per ton would be adjusted up $18.60. 

 

3.3 The Supplier certifies in signing this Bid Proposal that the price will be no higher than the lowest price 

the bidder charges other buyers for similar quantities under similar conditions. 

 
3.4 The Supplier shall provide the RACK price to the County upon request. 

 

 

SECTION 4.0 

 

Ordering & Delivery 

 ORDERING  

4.1.1 Gila County does not warrant the order quantity of any materials or services prior to actual 

need.  Gila County’s Public Works personnel may re-order materials as it becomes necessary or 

based on the required needs within the county during the term of this contract. 

4.1.2 Material Vendor shall be given a 72-hour advance notice of material order as needed by Gila 

County.  The Vendor shall make materials available for pick-up and/or arrange delivery within 

this timeframe as directed by the County. 

4.1.3 SAMPLES:  Supplier may be requested to furnish samples of products for examination by the 

County.  Any items so requested shall be furnished within five (5) working days from the date 

of request and furnished at no cost to the County and sent to the address designated in the 

Invitation for Proposals.  Unless otherwise specified, materials purchased will be inspected by 

the Using Agency to ensure the product meets the quality and quantity requirements of the 

Specifications.  Material may be sampled for compliance, as deemed necessary by the County.  

Any material not meeting the specifications of the contract will be rejected. 

4.1.4 TESTING:  The awarded Material Vendor is responsible for all laboratory or other appropriate 

agency for analysis and testing as to whether the product conforms in all respects to the 

Specifications.  It is the responsibility of the material vendor to furnish the product material 

certifications at the time of pick-up.  Testing shall be done in accordance with ADOT Standard 

Specifications Section 1005. 

 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 17 
 

 

Minimum Specifications continued… 

 

4.2 DELIVERY:  Delivery Sites, delivered price per ton in place for material delivery and return will be stated 

by the Supplier by region on the pricing pages of this Request for Proposals.  The Board of Supervisors 

may designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the Contract.  These needs 

may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal emergency, historical usage data. 

4.2.1  Supplier may be required to deliver material on a twenty-four (24) hour notice to any region of 

Gila County. 

4.2.2 Distributor trucks shall comply with ADOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge 

Constructions, Section 404, latest edition and revision, and must have a computerized 

distribution system.  If in the opinion of the Public Works director or his designee, the CRS-2P 

and MC-800 Chip Seal Oil product are placed utilizing equipment which is not capable of 

accurately measuring and/or applying the liquid asphalt products at a uniform rate as specified, 

shall be cause for the liquid asphalt product to be applied at no additional cost to Gila County. 

4.2.3 Transport Standby time shall apply only to time at the project site and only after 1.5 hours of 

unloading. 

 

4.3 PRICING:  Prices shall be for both F.O.B. at plant and delivered in place with boot truck.  Material Vendor 

– Supplier shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered and the Contract of coverage 

has been completed.  All risks of transportation and all related charges shall be the responsibility of the 

Supplier.  All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the Supplier.  The County will assist 

the Supplier in arranging for inspection. 

 

4.4 MATERIAL MEASURES AND PRICING ADJUSTMENTS:  The product shall be measured by the ton and 

shall be weighed on approved scales furnished by the Material Vendor or certified public scales at the 

Suppliers expense.  Quantities of material will be determined by the collected weight tickets at the scales 

at the Suppliers expense.  Quantities of material will be determined by the collected weight tickets as 

the source or at the selected delivery location. 

 

Supplier shall provide certified weight tickets for all delivered quantities.  It is the responsibility of the 

successful bidder to notify the County if any oil remains within a truck at the end of the day or upon 

completion of the work in order to determine pay quantities. 

 
 
Any material returned (other than rejected material) by the County, shall be credited to the County at the 
same rate period.  The successful bidder shall supply the County with a weight back ticket documenting the 
quantity of unused non-diluted product.  No credit will be issued for any unused diluted product. 

 

4.4.1 Cancellation:  Gila County retains the right to cancel orders at any time in the event of inclement 

weather or other emergency, and other unforeseen work stoppages beyond the control of the 

successful bidder or the County.  The standby rate shall only apply to time at the project site 

and until such time as the equipment is directed to leave due to inclement weather or other 

unforeseen conditions.  The Supplier shall deliver the specified materials at proper 

temperatures to the County at a new time at no additional charges. 

 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 18 
 

 

SECTION 5.0 

 
Product Minimum Specifications  

Requirements are as follows: 

 
CRS-2P PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 

 
Test Description 

Method 
(AASHTO) 

Required 
Minimum 

Required 
Maximum 

 
Tests on Emulsion 

   

Viscosity, Saybolt Furol @ 122°F, sec. T-72 150 400 

Sieve test, % T59 - 0.1 

Demulsibility, 35ml of 0.8% sodium dioctyl                

sulfosuccinate, % 

T59 70 - 

Storage Stability 1 day, % T-59  1 

Particle Charge test T-59 Positive Positive 

Distillation test: Residue by distillation, % by weight  65 - 

Distillation test: Oil distillate, % by volume of 

emulsion 

 - 0.5 

  



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 19 
 

Product Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
 

 

 

MC-800 liquid asphalt shall meet the requirements of section 712 of the Maricopa Association of Governments 

Uniform Standard Specification for Public Works Construction, latest edition revision. 

 

 

 

 

 
MC-800 PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 

 
Test Requirement Description 

 Required 
Minimum 

Required 
Maximum 

Kinematic Viscosity at 60 °C (140°F) centistokes 
 

 800 1600 

Flash point (Tab. Open-cup, degrees C°(F)  66 (15) - 

Distillation test: Distillate Percentage by volume of 

total distillate to 360°C (680°F) 

   

To 225°C (437°F) 

To 260°C (500°F) 

To 315°C (600°F) 

 - 

0 

45 

- 

35 

80 

Residue from distillation to 360°C (680°F) Volume 

percentage of sample by difference 

 75 - 

Water percent  - 0.2 

Tests on residue from distillation: Absolute viscosity 

at 60°C (140°F) poises 

 300 1200 

Tests on residue from distillation: Ductility, 5 

cm/min, cm. 

 100 - 

Tests on residue from distillation: Solubility in         

Trichlorethylene, percent 

 99 - 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 20 
 

 
 

PRICE SHEET 
 

Provide the total price proposed on these forms.  Attach any pertinent cost breakdowns, sub-totals of 

component cost, etc. to these proposal-pricing pages. 

 

All suppliers should understand that the usage quantity listed is a “best estimate” and may vary greatly in 

actuality. 

 
 

Estimated Maximum Annual Quantity:  _450 Tons______ 

 

 

 
CRS-2P CHIP SEAL OIL 

 

 
Supply Destination 

 
Delivered Per Ton in Place  

with Boot Truck 
 

 
FOB Plant Per Ton 

without Boot Truck 
 

 
Copper Region 

South of Roosevelt  
Lake Bridge 

  

 
Price Per Ton 

 
            $                           . 

 
            $                           . 

 
Timber Region 

North of Roosevelt 
 Lake Bridge 

  

 
Price Per Ton 

 
            $                           . 

 
            $                           . 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 21 
 

Estimated Maximum Annual Quantity:  _350 Tons______ 

 
 

 

MC-800 CHIP SEAL OIL 
 

 
Supply Destination 

 

Delivered Per Ton in Place  
with Boot Truck 

 

 

FOB Plant Per Ton 
without Boot Truck 

 

 
Copper Region 

South of Roosevelt  
Lake Bridge 

  

 
Price Per Ton 

 
            $                           . 

 
            $                           . 

 
Timber Region 

North of Roosevelt 
 Lake Bridge 

  

 
Price Per Ton 

 
            $                           . 

 
            $                           . 

 
 
Price to Include All Applicable Taxes, Freight, and Required Fees.             

 
 

No Tax shall be levied against Labor. 
 
 
 
Supplier Name:  _________________________________________   Phone No.:  ______________________ 
 
 
▪ Additional charge per hour after three (3) hours of spread time if County is responsible for delay: 
 

_$                                                       per hour. 

 
 
▪ Transport Truck Rental after two (2) hours pumping time     $                             ____       per hour. 

 
 
▪ Minimum _______________________ Ton for pick up FOB plant 

 
 
▪ Amount    $       ____________                       each occurrence for product returned and disposed. 

 

 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 22 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 110520 CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS 
 
The applicant submitting this proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractor’s disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
4. Has Contractor ever terminated a contract for cause with any individual or entity, government or 

otherwise, (under Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, 
give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the 
narrative part of this contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A cost proposal shall be submitted on the price sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the scope 

of services described herein; shall be submitted on the reference list, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 23 
 

 
 
 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower 
losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 24 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts, entered into or completed, of similar size and scope, 
as this request for proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months.  Bidder may attach further reference 
information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
        _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
           Title 

 

 

 

 

 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 25 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________ and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS, RFP NO. 110520 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he or she certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he or she nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly, or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free-competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2021. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 26 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 
 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 .................................................... I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 27 
 

 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 110520 CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS, my intention 
concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
proposal.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona Registrar of 
Contractors License Number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO,  it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 28 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the state and 
federal immigration laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the state and federal immigration laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the state and federal 
immigration laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of county’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further 
agrees that county may inspect the subcontractor’s books and records to insure that subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 29 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this 
agreement, engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by 
Contractor may result in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 30 
 

BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all bid documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this RFP.  
If Contractor fails to complete and execute any portion of the bid documents, all with original signatures, the 
RFP may be determined to be non-responsive and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

ISRAEL BOYCOT CERTIFICATION           ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2021 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                   Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                       By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 110520 CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS.  
All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department Division in the Copper Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, 
AZ on or before, January 20, 2021, by 3:00 PM. 

 
 
 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 31 
 

 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this request for proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  110520 CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110520/CRS-2P & MC-800 CHIP SEAL OILS Page 32 
 

 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                  is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 110520, including all terms and conditions, specifications, and amendments, and the contractor’s 

offer as accepted by Gila County. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 110520. The Contractor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which shall include original 
signatures, and for all purposes shall be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________,                    . 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
              
Chairman, Board of Supervisors     Authorized Signature 
 
 
ATTEST:              
        Print Name 
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 

 



   
ARF-6351   Regular Agenda Item     2. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

12-02-20 to 06-30-21 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to use Sourcewell Contract No. 060920-KTC with Inland
Kenworth, Inc. for the purchase of 2021 water truck.

Background Information
The Recycle Landfill Buckhead Mesa water truck C-004 is a 1991
Chevrolet with a 2200 gallon water tank. It was purchased new for
$82,616 in September 1990. To date, the repair and maintenance costs
are $62,291 with another $8,000 planned. A C-007 1988 Freightliner
dump truck will be turned in so as not to increase the fleet.

Evaluation
The Buckhead Mesa Landfill pumps more leachate out of the ponds than
the Russell Gulch Landfill. Truck C-004 won’t hold the water all night; the
A/C needs to be fixed; and the brakes need to be worked on at a cost of
about $8000 for repairs. The majority of this truck's work is pumping
leachate out of the pond to recirculate it and to keep the dust under
control. That is the reason the mileage is low. There is a backup water
truck on site, which isn’t very reliable but will hold water. If the Board
approves this purchase of a new water truck, the C-004 truck will be sent
to the Globe Shop for repair and stationed at the Russell Gulch Landfill
for a backup in case of fire or if the current water truck needs repair.

Conclusion
Reliable equipment is vital to keeping the landfill operation successful



Reliable equipment is vital to keeping the landfill operation successful
and the employees safe. Each landfill should have a backup water truck
for several reasons. The deep discounts offered by this vendor through the
Sourcewell contract is a great opportunity to upgrade the equipment at
this time. The Inland Kenworth vendor is working with Interstate Tank &
Spray System to add the water tank and plumbing to the truck. This way
the price is all in one invoice and will be delivered completely for
$94,089.32 plus tax and fees.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director and Recycle Landfill Department
Manager recommend purchasing a 2021 T270 water truck through Inland
Kenworth Inc. under Sourcewell Contract 060920-KTC for $102,185.73
for the Buckhead Mesa Landfill.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of a Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement between Sourcewell and Inland Kenworth Inc.
under Contract No. 060920-KTC in an amount not to exceed $102,185.73
for the purchase of a 2021 water truck, and authorize the Chairman’s
signature on the awarded contract. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Contract Agreement
Inland Kenworth Quote for Gila County
Sourcewell RFP #060920-KTC Signed Contract



CONTRACT AGREEMENT  

 
 
 
 
Contract Name: 

 
 
 
 
Sourcewell-New Kenworth Water Truck 

 
 
 
 
Contract No.: 

 
 
 
 
Sourcewell No. 060920-KTC 

 
 
 

Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences) Gila County wishes to utilize Cooperative Purchasing Agreement Sourcewell 
060920-KTC with Inland Kenworth, Inc to purchase one new Kenworth Water Truck. All Documents executed by the 

Sourcewell Contract No. 060920-KTC, apply to this procurement between Gila County and Inland Kenworth, Inc. 
 

INDEMNIFICATION:  Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, 
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or 
loss or damage to tangible or intangible property to the extent caused by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of 
Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim 
or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such contractor 
to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention 
of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts 
or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that 
Contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is 
applicable.  In consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against 
the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed by the Contractor for 
the County. 
 

IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE WARRANTY:   As required by A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants its 

compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  

Contractor further warrants that after hiring an employee, it verifies the employment eligibility of the employee through 

the e-verify program.  If Contractor uses any subcontractors in performance of the Agreement, subcontractors shall 

warrant their compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A.R.S. § 23-

214(A), and subcontractors shall further warrant that after hiring an employee, such subcontractor verifies the 

employment eligibility of the employee through the e-verify program.  A breach of this warranty shall be deemed a material 

breach of the Agreement subject to penalties up to and including termination of this Agreement.  Contractor shall not be 

deemed in material breach if it and its subcontractors establish compliance with the employment verification provisions 

of Sections 274A and 274B of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the e-verify requirements contained in A.R.S. 

§ 23-214(A).  The County retains the legal right to inspect the papers of the Contractor and its subcontractors engaged in 

performance of this Agreement to ensure that the Contractor and its subcontractors are complying with the warranty.   

Any inspection will be conducted after reasonable notice and at reasonable times.   If state law is amended, the parties 

may modify this paragraph consistent with state law. 

 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION: Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for 

the duration of this agreement, engage in a boycott of Israel as required by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this 

certification by Contractor may result in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 

Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  This Agreement is subject to cancellation for conflict of interest as provided in A.R.S. 
§ 38-511, which is hereby fully incorporated herein by this reference as if the same as if fully set forth in this contract. 
 

 
 
 
Contract End Date: 

 
 
 
12-01-20 to 06-30-21 

 
 

Renewal Option: 

      
        Yes 

       No 
 
 
Maximum Dollar Limit: 

 
 
$102,185.73 



 
 
 
 

Contract Information 

 
Firm Name: 

 
Inland Kenworth, Inc. 

 
Contact Person: 

 
Mike McGee 

 
Address: 

 
6165 W. Detroit Street 

 
Phone No: 

 
602-258-7791 

 
 
City: 

 
 
Tolleson 

 
 
State: 

 
 
AZ 85353 

 
 
Fax: 

 
 

 
 
Email: 

 
mmcgee@inland-
group.com 

 
 
 
 
 

Special Notes: 
Gila County is part of the Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Cooperative, for Cooperative Purchasing.  By using the Sourcewell Contract 
with Inland Kenworth, Inc, it will save the County in both time and money for a rate that has already been established in the Sourcewell 
Procure bidding process. 
 

 
 

Authorization to use a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with the Sourcewell Cooperative Contract No. 060920-KTC for  
 
Purchase of equipment, supplies, training and services - approved this       day of                        2020.    
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 

_________________________________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Board of Supervisors 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
 

________________________________________________________ 
 
Marian Sheppard,  Clerk of the Board 
 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 

________________________________________________________ 
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 

 













060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           1 
 

 
 

Solicitation Number: RFP #060920 
 

CONTRACT 
 
 
This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc., 10630 N.E. 38th 
Place, Kirkland, WA  98033 (Vendor). 

  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government agency and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to government entities. Participation is open to federal, 
state/province, and municipal governmental entities, higher education, K-12 education, 
nonprofit, tribal government, and other public entities located in the United States and Canada.     

  
Vendor desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and the entities that access Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts 
(Participating Entities).  

 
1. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
B. EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires August 1, 2024, unless it is 
cancelled sooner pursuant to Article 24. This Contract may be extended up to one additional 
one-year period upon request of Sourcewell and with written agreement by Vendor. 
 
C. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Articles 11 through 16 survive the expiration or cancellation of this 
Contract.  
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Vendor will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Vendor’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    
 
All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new/current model.  Vendor 
may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated in 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           2 
 

Vendor’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Participating Entities in advance, 
Equipment or Products must be delivered as operational to the Participating Entity’s site.     
 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.   
 
B. WARRANTY.   Vendor warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship 
pursuant to the express vehicle warranty and extended warranties provided with all Vendor’s 
vehicles. Vendor does not warrant or accept responsibility or liability for any parts separately 
warrantied, for example, body installations, or engines not manufactured by Vendor (which 
carry a separate manufacturer’s warranty).  In addition, Vendor warrants the Equipment, 
Products, and Services are suitable for and will perform in accordance with the ordinary use for 
which they are intended. Vendor’s dealers and distributors must agree to assist the 
Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute over warranty terms with the 
manufacturer. Any manufacturer’s warranty that is effective past the expiration of the Vendor’s 
warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity. 
 
C. DEALERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND/OR RESELLERS. Upon Contract execution, Vendor will 
make available to Sourcewell a means to validate or authenticate Vendor’s authorized dealers, 
distributors, and/or resellers relative to the Equipment, Products, and Services related to this 
Contract. This list may be updated from time-to-time and is incorporated into this Contract by 
reference. It is the Vendor’s responsibility to ensure Sourcewell receives the most current 
version of this list.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced as stated in Vendor’s 
Proposal.  
 
When providing pricing quotes to Participating Entities, all pricing quoted must reflect a 
Participating Entity’s total cost of acquisition. This means that the quoted cost is for delivered 
Equipment, Products, and Services that are operational for their intended purpose, and 
includes all costs to the Participating Entity’s requested delivery location.   
 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Participating Entity, the total cost associated 
with any purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in 
the pricing quote to the applicable Participating Entity at the time of purchase.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, Vendor must permit the Equipment and Products to be 
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Participating Entities. 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           3 
 

Participating Entities reserve the right to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable 
time after delivery where circumstances or conditions prevent effective inspection of the 
Equipment and Products at the time of delivery. 
   
Vendor must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 
Sourcewell may declare the Vendor in breach of this Contract if the Vendor intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products. In the event of the delivery of 
nonconforming Equipment and Products, the Participating Entity will notify the Vendor as soon 
as possible and the Vendor will replace nonconforming Equipment and Products with 
conforming Equipment and Products that are acceptable to the Participating Entity. 
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Vendor with valid tax-
exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-
exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Vendor may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Vendor determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   
 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Participating Entities. 
 

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Vendor may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. This form is available 
from the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. At a minimum, the request must:  
 

 Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number; 
 Clearly specify the requested change; 
 Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change; 
 Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested change, 

along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change); and 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           4 
 

 Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel with the 
effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The new pricing 
restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, even for those 
items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 
A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will be become an 
amendment to this Contract and be incorporated by reference.  

 
5. PARTICIPATION, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND PARTICIPATING ENTITY REQUIREMENTS 

  
A. PARTICIPATION. Sourcewell’s cooperative contracts are available and open to public and 
nonprofit entities across the United States and Canada; such as federal, state/province, 
municipal, K-12 and higher education, tribal government, and other public entities.   
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Participating Entities that can legally 
access the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Participating Entity’s 
authority to access this Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, 
or joint powers laws. Any entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service 
Member of Sourcewell during such time of access. Vendor understands that a Participating 
Entity’s use of this Contract is at the Participating Entity’s sole convenience and Participating 
Entities reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products, or Services from any other source. 
 
Vendor is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell contract use 
eligibility requirements and documentation and will encourage potential members to join 
Sourcewell.  Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Participating Entities to its roster 
during the term of this Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Vendor’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Vendor’s employees and agents must conduct themselves in 
a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Participating Entity 
policies and procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. PARTICIPATING ENTITY USE AND PURCHASING 
 
A. ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under 
this Contract, a Participating Entity must clearly indicate to Vendor that it intends to access this 
Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and 
Vendor. Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Vendor. If a Participating 
Entity issues a purchase order, it may use its own forms, but the purchase order should clearly 
note the applicable Sourcewell contract number. All Participating Entity orders under this 
Contract must be issued prior to expiration of this Contract; however, Vendor performance, 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           5 
 

Participating Entity payment, and any applicable warranty periods or other Vendor or 
Participating Entity obligations may extend beyond the term of this Contract.  
 
Vendor’s acceptable forms of payment are included in Attachment A.  Participating Entities will 
be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no liability for any unpaid invoice of 
any Participating Entity.   
 
B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS/PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM. Additional terms and 
conditions to a purchase order may be negotiated between a Participating Entity and Vendor, 
such as job or industry-specific requirements, legal requirements (e.g., affirmative action or 
immigration status requirements), or specific local policy requirements. Some Participating 
Entitles may require the use of a Participating Addendum; the terms of which will be worked 
out directly between the Participating Entity and the Vendor.  Any negotiated additional terms 
and conditions must never be less favorable to the Participating Entity than what is contained in 
this Contract. 
 
C. PERFORMANCE BOND. If requested by a Participating Entity, Vendor will provide a 
performance bond that meets the requirements set forth in the Participating Entity’s order. If a 
performance bond is requested by a Participating Entity, Vendor’s dealer will have sole 
responsibility to agree to and establish the bond. 

 
D. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Participating Entity requires 
service or specialized performance requirements (such as e-commerce specifications, 
specialized delivery requirements, or other specifications and requirements) not addressed in 
this Contract, the Participating Entity and the Vendor may enter into a separate, standalone 
agreement, apart from this Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not 
be made a party to a claim for breach of such agreement.   
 
E. TERMINATION OF ORDERS. Participating Entities may terminate an order, in whole or 
in part, immediately upon notice to Vendor in the event of any of the following events:   
 

1. The Participating Entity fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body 
at levels sufficient to pay for the goods to be purchased; 
2. Federal,  state, or provincial laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Participating Entity’s requirements; or 
3. Vendor commits any material breach of this Contract or the additional terms agreed to 
between the Vendor and a Participating Entity. 

 
F. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Participating Entity’s order will be determined by the Participating Entity making the purchase.   
 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           6 
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Vendor will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

 Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
 Timely response to all Sourcewell and Participating Entity inquiries; and 
 Business reviews to Sourcewell and Participating Entities, if applicable. 

 
B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Vendor must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to Participating Entities, 
pricing and contract terms, administrative fees, supply issues, customer issues, and any other 
necessary information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Vendor must provide a contract 
sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this 
Contract. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Vendor must submit a report indicating no sales were made).  
 
The Report must contain the following fields: 
 

 Customer Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
 Customer Physical Street Address; 
 Customer City; 
 Customer State/Province; 
 Customer Zip Code; 
 Customer Contact Name; 
 Customer Contact Email Address; 
 Customer Contact Telephone Number; 
 Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Participating Entity Number; 
 Item Purchased Description; 
 Item Purchased Price;  
 Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
 Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Vendor. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Vendor will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Participating Entities. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not 
added to, the pricing. Vendor may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           7 
 

price to offset the Administrative Fee. 
 
The Vendor will submit a check payable to Sourcewell for the administrative fee amount stated 
in the Proposal multiplied by the total number of trucks purchased by Participating Entities 
under this Contract during each calendar quarter. Payments should note the Sourcewell-
assigned contract number in the memo and must be mailed to the address above “Attn: 
Accounts Receivable.” Payments must be received no later than 45 calendar days after the end 
of each calendar quarter. 

 
Vendor agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Vendor is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Vendor in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than 30 days 
from the cancellation date.  

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 
Vendor’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Vendor’s Proposal. If Vendor’s 
Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Vendor must promptly 
notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 
10. ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 

 
A. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the Vendor nor Sourcewell may assign or transfer any rights or 
obligations under this Contract without the prior consent of the parties and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld.     
 
B. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been fully executed by the parties.   
 
C. WAIVER. If either party fails to enforce any provision of this Contract, that failure does not 
waive the provision or the right to enforce it. 
 
D. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract contains all negotiations and agreements between 
Sourcewell and Vendor. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or 
oral, may be used to bind either party. 
 
E. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           8 
 

respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, or any other 
relationship such as master-servant, or principal-agent.  

 
11. LIABILITY 

  
Vendor must indemnify, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including their 
agents and employees, harmless from any claims or causes of action, including attorneys’ fees, 
to the extent arising out of the performance of this Contract by the Vendor or its agents or 
employees; this indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to 
have been caused by some defect in the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract 
to the extent the Equipment, Product, or Service has been used according to its specifications. 

 
12. AUDITS 

 
Sourcewell reserves the right to review the books, records, documents, and accounting 
procedures and practices of the Vendor relevant to this Contract for a minimum of 6 years from 
the end of this Contract. This clause extends to Participating Entities as it relates to business 
conducted by that Participating Entity under this Contract. 
 

13. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 
 
Vendor and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Vendor under this Contract.  
 
If the Vendor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Vendor must 
immediately notify Sourcewell and Sourcewell will assist with how the Vendor should respond 
to the request. 
 

14. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
As applicable, Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Sourcewell and its Participating 
Entities against any and all suits, claims, judgments, and costs instituted or recovered against 
Sourcewell or Participating Entities by any person on account of the use of any Equipment or 
Products by Sourcewell or its Participating Entities supplied by Vendor in violation of applicable 
patent or copyright laws. 
 

15. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 
 

A. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
1. Grant of License. During the term of this Contract: 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           9 
 

a. Sourcewell grants to Vendor a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use theTrademark(s) provided to Vendor by Sourcewell in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing Sourcewell’s relationship with 
Vendor. 
b. Vendor grants to Sourcewell a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use Vendor’s Trademarks in advertising and promotional materials for the 
purpose of marketing Vendor’s relationship with Sourcewell. 

2. Limited Right of Sublicense. The right and license granted herein includes a limited right 
of each party to grant sublicenses to its and their respective distributors, marketing 
representatives, and agents (collectively “Permitted Sublicensees”) in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing the Parties’ relationship to Participating 
Entities. Any sublicense granted will be subject to the terms and conditions of this Article. 
Each party will be responsible for any breach of this Article by any of their respective 
sublicensees.  
3. Use; Quality Control.  

a. Sourcewell must not alter Vendor’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Vendor and must comply with Vendor’s removal requests as to specific uses of its 
trademarks or logos.   
b. Vendor must not alter Sourcewell’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Sourcewell and must comply with Sourcewell’s removal requests as to specific uses 
of its trademarks or logos.   
c. Each party agrees to use, and to cause its Permitted Sublicensees to use, the 
other party’s Trademarks only in good faith and in a dignified manner consistent 
with such party’s use of the Trademarks. Upon written notice to the breaching party, 
the breaching party has 30 days of the date of the written notice to cure the breach 
or the license will be terminated.  

4. Termination. Upon the termination of this Contract for any reason, each party, including 
Permitted Sublicensees, will have 30 days to remove all Trademarks from signage, websites, 
and the like bearing the other party’s name or logo (excepting Sourcewell’s pre-printed 
catalog of vendors which may be used until the next printing).  Vendor must return all 
marketing and promotional materials, including signage, provided by Sourcewell, or dispose 
of it according to Sourcewell’s written directions. 

 
B. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Vendor individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
C. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Participating Entities must be 
approved by Sourcewell. Materials should be sent to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator 
assigned to this Contract.   
 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           10 
 

D. ENDORSEMENT. The Vendor must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
16. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
Minnesota law governs this Contract. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Contract, or its 
breach, must be in the appropriate state court in Todd County or federal court in Fergus Falls, 
Minnesota.  
 

17. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under 
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 
 

18. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void then both 
Sourcewell and Vendor will be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the 
remainder of this Contract is capable of performance, it will not be affected by such declaration 
or finding and must be fully performed. 
 

19. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 
 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  
 

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute and 
work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If necessary, 
Sourcewell and the Vendor will jointly develop a short briefing document that describes the 
issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  
2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as specified 
above, either Sourcewell or Vendor may escalate the resolution of the issue to a higher 
level of management. The Vendor will have 30 calendar days to cure an outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the 
Vendor must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities under the 
Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Vendor fails to continue without delay 
to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment of all undisputed 
work, any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its Participating Entities as a result 
of such failure to proceed will be borne by the Vendor. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Participating Entity order under this Contract, in default:   



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           11 
 

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
Written notice of default and a reasonable opportunity to cure must be issued by the party 
claiming default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for liquidated 
or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting 
party may: 
 

 Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
 Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued against the 

Contract. 
 

20. INSURANCE 
  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Vendor must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect at 
all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

 Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

  
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Vendor will maintain insurance covering 
its operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no 
less broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition), or equivalent. At a minimum, coverage must include 
liability arising from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, 
contractual liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising 
injury. All required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during 
the term of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           12 
 

3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Vendor will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles 
in limits of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms 
no less broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer), 
or equivalent. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 
4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain 
umbrella coverage over Workers’ Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and 
Commercial Automobile. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
5. Professional/Technical, Errors and Omissions, and/or Miscellaneous Professional 
Liability. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for all claims 
the Vendor may become legally obligated to pay resulting from any actual or alleged 
negligent act, error, or omission related to Vendor’s professional services required 
under this Contract.  

 Minimum Limits:  
$2,000,000 per claim or event 
$2,000,000 – annual aggregate 

 
6. Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. During the term of this 
Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for network security and privacy liability. The 
coverage may be endorsed on another form of liability coverage or written on a 
standalone policy. The insurance must cover claims which may arise from failure of 
Vendor’s security resulting in, but not limited to, computer attacks, unauthorized 
access, disclosure of not public data – including but not limited to, confidential or 
private information, transmission of a computer virus, or denial of service.  

 Minimum limits:  
$2,000,000 per occurrence 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
Failure of Vendor to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Vendor must furnish 
to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must be signed by 
a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. All policies must include 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           13 
 

there will be no cancellation, suspension, non-renewal, or reduction of coverage without 30 
days’ prior written notice to the Vendor.   
 
Upon request, Vendor must provide to Sourcewell copies of applicable policies and 
endorsements, within 10 days of a request. Failure to request certificates of insurance by 
Sourcewell, or failure of Vendor to provide certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves 
Vendor of its duties and responsibilities in this Contract.  
 
C. Intentionally Omitted.   
 
D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Vendor waives and must require (by endorsement or 
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional 
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other 
insurance applicable to the Vendor or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all 
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance 
maintained by the Vendor or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Vendor must require 
similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.   
 
E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY. The limits required by this Contract can be met by either 
providing a primary policy or in combination with umbrella/excess liability policy(ies), or self-
insurance in accordance with Vendor’s risk management practices. 
 

21. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 
B. LICENSES. Vendor must maintain a valid and current status on all required federal, 
state/provincial, and local licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the 
business that the Vendor conducts with Sourcewell and Participating Entities. 

 
22. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 
Vendor certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Vendor declares bankruptcy, Vendor must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 
Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 
operated by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           14 
 

government, as applicable; or any Participating Entity. Vendor certifies and warrants that 
neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the subject 
matter of this Contract. Vendor further warrants that it will provide immediate written notice 
to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 

23. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Participating Entities that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or 
services from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the 
procurement standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Participating Entities may also require 
additional requirements based on specific funding specifications. Within this Article, all 
references to “federal” should be interpreted to mean the United States federal government. 
The following list only applies when a Participating Entity accesses Vendor’s Equipment, 
Products, or Services with United States federal funds. 
 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated 
herein by reference. If required to file compliance reports, Vendor will provide AAP and EEO1  
reports only. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to 
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current 
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The 
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the 
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to 
the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           15 
 

Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that 
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Vendor must be in 
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 
C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of 
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess 
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements 
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Vendor certifies that during the term of an 
award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Vendor must 
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Vendor 
certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this 
procurement process, Vendor must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require 
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Vendor 
certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements as 
referenced above. 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           16 
 

 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Vendor 
certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency. 
 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Vendors must file 
any required certifications. Vendors must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award 
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Vendors must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Vendors must file all certifications and disclosures 
required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 
1352). 
 
H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply with 
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Vendor further certifies 
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of 3 years after 
grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial 
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
I. ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor 
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and Conservation Act. 
 
J. BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply 
with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance with the 
Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open 
competition. 
 
K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Vendor agrees that duly authorized 
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and 
records of Vendor that are directly pertinent to Vendor’s discharge of its obligations under this 
Contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The right 



060920-KTC 
 

Rev. 2/2020                           17 
 

also includes timely and reasonable access to Vendor’s personnel for the purpose of interview 
and discussion relating to such documents. 
 
L. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A non-federal entity that is 
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply 
with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in 
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. § 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines.  
 

24. CANCELLATION 
 

Sourcewell or Vendor may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon 60 
days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Vendor’s Proposal.  
Cancellation of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or service 
obligations incurred or accrued prior to cancellation. 
 
 

Sourcewell Kenworth Truck Company, 
Division of PACCAR Inc. 
 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz Mike Kleespies 

Title: Director of Operations & 
Procurement/CPO 

Title: Director Medium Duty Sales 

 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Date: ________________________ 

Approved:  
  
By: __________________________  

Chad Coauette  
Title: Executive Director/CEO  
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications Form 
 
Only those Proposer Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications that have been accepted by Sourcewell have been   
incorporated into the contract text. 
 
 

Documents 
 

Ensure your submission document(s) conforms to the following: 
 

1. Documents in PDF format are preferred. Documents in Word, Excel, or compatible formats may also be provided. 
 

2. Documents should NOT have a security password, as Sourcewell may not be able to open the file. It is your sole responsibility to 
ensure that the uploaded document(s) are not either defective, corrupted or blank and that the documents can be opened and viewed by 
Sourcewell. 

 
3. Sourcewell may reject any response where any document(s) cannot be opened and viewed by Sourcewell. 

 
4. If you need to upload more than one (1) document for a single item, you should combine the documents into one zipped file. If the 
zipped file contains more than one (1) document, ensure each document is named, in relation to the submission format item responding 
to. For example, if responding to the Marketing Plan category save the document as "Marketing Plan." 

 
Financial Strength and Stability - paccar-2019-annual financial report.pdf - Thursday May 28, 2020 16:29:19 
Marketing Plan/Samples - Marketing support docs.zip - Thursday May 28, 2020 16:45:51 
WMBE/MBE/SBE or Related Certificates - Women in Trucking Award.docx - Thursday May 28, 2020 16:29:38 
Warranty Information - Kenworth Warranty Documents.zip - Thursday May 28, 2020 16:29:57 
Pricing - Member Pricing Matrix for Kenworth Trucks.pdf - Thursday June 04, 2020 12:28:28 
Additional Document - Kenworth Additional Supporting Docs.zip - Tuesday June 09, 2020 12:15:59 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 060920 Vendor Name: Kenworth Truck Company, Division of PACCAR Inc. 



   
ARF-6344   Regular Agenda Item     2. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment or reappointment of members of the Board of Supervisors to
various boards, committees, and organizations for 2021.

Background Information
Each year, members of the Board of Supervisors are provided the
opportunity to serve on other boards, committees, and organizations by
virtue of their membership on the Board of Supervisors. They are
elected/appointed by their peers to represent the interests of Gila County
on these boards, committees, and organizations.

On December 17, 2019, the Board unanimously voted to represent the
same boards, committees, and organizations in 2020 as they represented
in 2019 with one exception.  Vice-Chairman Martin offered to serve on the
Coalition of Arizona/New Mexico Counties, to which Chairman Cline and
Supervisor Humphrey agreed. The list is as follows:

Supervisor Tommie Martin –
County Supervisors Association Legislative Policy Committee
Eastern Arizona Counties Organization
Coalition of Arizona/New Mexico Counties

Supervisor Tim Humphrey –
Correctional Officers Retirement Plan (CORP) Local Board for Sheriff's
   Office Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers
Gila County Local Emergency Planning Committee
Central Arizona Governments Regional Council
Gila County Community College Allied Health Care Advisory Committee
Gila County College Industry and Mining Advisory Board

Supervisor Woody Cline –
CORP Local Board for Sheriff's Office Dispatchers
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board
Gila County Board of Health



Gila County Board of Health
San Carlos Apache Tribe Partnership Steering Committee

Evaluation
Each year the Board of Supervisors review the various boards,
commissions, and organizations of which they served as a member during
the current year, and decide to remain serving or to appoint other Board
members to serve during the following calendar year.

Conclusion
It is appropriate for the Board of Supervisors to make the appointments
to the various boards, committees, and organizations to serve during the
calendar year 2021.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board discuss the various boards,
committees, and organizations and appoint members to serve for 2021.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to appoint members of the Board of
Supervisors to the following boards, committees, and organizations for the
calendar year 2021: County Supervisors Association Legislative Policy
Committee; Eastern Arizona Counties Organization; Correctional Officers
Retirement Plan (CORP) Local Board for Sheriff's Office Detention Officers
and Non-Uniformed Officers; Gila County Local Emergency Planning
Committee; Central Arizona Governments Regional Council; Gila County
Community College Allied Health Care Advisory Committee; Gila County
College Industry and Mining Advisory Board; CORP Local Board for
Sheriff's Office Dispatchers; Public Safety Personnel Retirement System
Local Board; Gila County Board of Health; San Carlos Apache Tribe
Partnership Steering Committee; and Coalition of Arizona/New Mexico
Counties. (Woody Cline)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
ARF-6341   Regular Agenda Item     2. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sealed bid for the purchase of Assessor's parcel number 101-09-129.

Background Information
On June 19, 2009, the Gila County Treasurer deeded parcel number
101-09-129 to the State of Arizona c/o Board of Supervisors because the
previous owner did not pay taxes on the subject property for 7
consecutive years. This parcel did not sell at the December 1, 2009 Board
of Supervisors' auction; therefore, it was added to a list of properties that
can be purchased year-round through the Clerk of the Board.

This property is located at 265 S. Smelter Place in Hayden with a
deteriorated house. The total lien amount on this parcel is $3,356.59.

Evaluation
On November 3, 2020, Corey Lee Busboom submitted a sealed bid to the
Clerk of the Board for the Board of Supervisors to consider selling him
parcel number 101-09-129 for less than the lien amount. At that time he
also provided proof of adjoining ownership, which is a requirement of the
sealed bid process. Mr. Busboom owns adjoining parcel number
101-09-128.

If the Board of Supervisors accepts Mr. Busboom's bid to purchase this
property, it is his intent to request that the Assessor combine the parcels.
This will be a win-win situation for Mr. Busboom and the County. He will
receive one tax assessment and one tax bill per year and it will save the
Assessor and Treasurer time reducing the number of documents issued
by each office. Mr. Busboom intends on cleaning up the property and
using it as a rental property and for parking.

Gila County Resolution No. 15-05-05 states, "WHEREAS, the Board of
Supervisors may waive the requirement to sell the property for no less



than the total lien amount if a condition warrants selling a parcel at a
lesser price."

Conclusion
It would be advantageous for the Board of Supervisors to consider a bid
that is less than the lien amount; whereby, if this property is sold, it will
go back on the County's tax rolls.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors consider the bid for the
purchase of the aforementioned parcel.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase
of Assessor's tax parcel number 101-09-129 and, if accepted, authorize
the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
101-09-129 Information
101-09-129 Map





























   
ARF-6352   Consent Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Erin Miller, Elections Assistant
Department: Elections

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of Libertarian Party Precinct Committeemen in Gila County.

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statute §16-821 (B) states, "The board of supervisors
upon the recommendation of the county chairman, or the
recommendation of a committee designated in the bylaws of the
county committee for that purpose, shall determine when a vacancy
exists in the office of precinct committeeman. If a vacancy exists, the
vacancy shall be filled by the board of supervisors from a list of
names submitted by the county chairman of the appropriate political
party. Only a precinct committeeman elected at the primary election
prior to the date of a state or county committee organizing meeting
shall be permitted to vote at such meeting. The criteria used to
establish when a vacancy exists in the office of precinct committeeman
shall be as established in section 38-291."

Evaluation
The Gila County Libertarian Committee Chairman, Jeff Daniels, has
submitted Bruce Orin Wales for appointment to the office of precinct
committeeman in the Payson #2 precinct; Lawrence I. Hoffenberg for
appointment to the office of precinct committeeman in the Payson #8
precinct; Jeff Daniels for appointment to the office of precinct
committeeman in the Zane Gray precinct. Per statute, the Board of
Supervisors has the authority to make this appointment. Upon review of
the precinct committeemen allotment table, it has been determined that
vacancies exist for the Libertarian Party.

Conclusion
The Gila County Libertarian Committee Chairman, Jeff Daniels, has



The Gila County Libertarian Committee Chairman, Jeff Daniels, has
submitted Bruce Orin Wales for appointment to the office of precinct
committeeman in the Payson #2 precinct; Lawrence I. Hoffenberg for
appointment to the office of precinct committeeman in the Payson #8
precinct; Jeff Daniels for appointment to the office of precinct
committeeman in the Zane Gray precinct for appointments by the Board
of Supervisors, to serve as Precinct Committeemen. Upon review of the
precinct committeemen allotment table, it has been determined that the
vacancies exist for the Libertarian Party.

Recommendation
The Gila County Elections Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the requested appointments as stated above.

Suggested Motion
Appointment of the following Libertarian Party Precinct Committeemen in
Gila County: Bruce Orin Wales -Payson #2 Precinct; Lawrence I.
Hoffenberg -Payson #8 Precinct; and Jeff Daniels-Zane Gray Precinct.

Attachments
Gila County Libertarian Party Appointments
ARS 16-821











   
ARF-6355   Consent Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Reporting
Period:

November 17, 2020

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
Board of Supervisors' November 17, 2020, Meeting Minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Board of Supervisors' November 17, 2020, meeting
minutes.

Attachments
11-17-20 Meeting Minutes



 

Page 1 of 13 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  November 17, 2020 

 
WOODY CLINE       MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN          By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman 

                                                             
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman (by ITV); Tommie Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(by phone); and Tim R. Humphrey, Member 

 
STAFF PRESENT:  W. James Menlove, County Manager (by phone); Jacque 
Sanders, Deputy County Manager and District Librarian; Rick Husk, Deputy 

County Attorney; and Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board (by phone) 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 

 
Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 

the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Lisa Modglin led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and David Rogers delivered the invocation. 
 

Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 
A.  Presentation regarding the Community Development Department's 

Code Enforcement and Wastewater Divisions.  
 

Scott Buzan, Community Development Department Director, advised that in 
February 2020 he presented information to the Board of Supervisors on the 
operations of the Building Safety Division and Planning and Zoning Division of 

the Community Development Department.  The purpose of this presentation 
was to cover the remaining Divisions within that Department.  He stated that 

the Community Development Department operates under a “One Stop Shop” 
concept.  There are offices in Globe and Payson to assist the public.  Mr. Buzan 
proceeded to review a slide presentation.  He read aloud the definition of code 

enforcement and reviewed the Division’s mission statement and the 
ordinances, building codes, and Arizona Department of Environmental Quality 
(ADEQ) rules that are enforced by Code Compliance Specialists.  There is one 

Specialist based in Globe and the other Specialist is based in Payson.  Mr. 
Buzan advised that the two Code Compliance Specialists work closely with 



 

Page 2 of 13 

 

Building Safety, Planning and Zoning, Wastewater, Floodplain, Grading and 
Drainage, County Attorney’s Office, and an approved collection agency.  The 

County contracts with a Hearing Officer. At the end of September, there were 
104 active open complaints (21 Globe, 83 Payson).  Payson currently has 4 

times the number of cases compared to Globe.  Well over 200 cases have been 
opened and closed in the first 3 quarters of 2020.  The Division has a goal of 7 
days from the date a complaint is received to verify if it is a violation.  The 

Specialists are currently averaging 4.6 days and only missed their goal a couple 
of times this year.  In the southern section of the County, junk, dry weeds, and 
brush make up the majority of complaints while in the northern section the 

complaints are regarding building without permits and dry weeds and brush.  
Only 13% of complaint cases so far this year have been heard by the Hearing 

Officer.  Mr. Buzan attributes this low percentage to staff’s educational efforts 
and working diligently with the violators, plus the willingness of property 
owners in the County to comply once they are made aware of the violation.  He 

added that a few years back the Division contracted with a collection agency to 
collect those fines assessed by the Hearing Officer.  The agency was recently 

successful in obtaining payment of $400 from a property owner.  This is the 
Division’s first successful recovery thus far.  Mr. Buzan stated that looking 
ahead there is a plan in place to promote swifter compliance with violations for 

dried weeds and brush.  Prolonged drought conditions have increased the 
public’s concern regarding the potential threat of a wildfire which results in an 
increase in complaints during the months after the spring weeds have dried 

out.  Code enforcement hearings will be scheduled monthly from March 
through May in an attempt to get faster compliance to remove the fire hazard.  

Staff will continue to seek properties that are a good candidate for the County’s 
Clean and Lien Ordinance program.   
 

Mr. Buzan reviewed the Wastewater Division and he provided the definition of 
wastewater.  With a staff of 3 and combined experience of 61 years, Wastewater 
plays a vital role in enabling growth in the County while protecting the water 

supply and the environment.  Delegated by the Board of Supervisors in 2001 to 
create an effective septic program, Wastewater has evolved into a highly 

respected guardian tasked with protecting the health of the public and the 
water they drink.  This is done through soil testing, septic system plan reviews 
and inspections, and investigation of sewage surfacing complaints.  The 

importance of a soil test cannot be stressed enough.  A septic system designed 
to the type of soil ensures not only that the system will function and serve the 

property for years but protect the health of those who use it and reside nearby.  
Plan review of both conventional and alternative septic systems is also 
important.  An improperly designed system is doomed to early failure and most 

likely will lead to soil contamination, polluting of the water table, and a waste 
of the property owner’s money.  Inspections of the septic system are critical.  A 
well-designed system for the type of soil will be ineffective if it is not properly 

installed per the approved plan.  Mr. Buzan advised that investigating the 
surfacing of sewage is probably the least liked task.  While Code Enforcement 



 

Page 3 of 13 

 

could investigate these types of complaints, Wastewater has graciously 
accepted this unpleasant assignment.  Working with the property owner in a 

courteous but firm manner, Wastewater has a proven history of quick 
compliance.  Wastewater also handles septic tank replacements, cesspool 

determinations, gray water systems, and new well applications.  Continuing 
education and training of both staff and contractors is not only important but 
required.  Contractors and designers who attend training and pass a test are 

placed on a list that property owners can request and which is made available 
on the Department’s webpage on the County’s website.  This takes away some 
of the guesswork on who to hire to design and install their septic system since 

the names listed are qualified to do so in Gila County.  Training and testing are 
required every two years to stay on the list.  Mr. Buzan referred to a chart that 

showed a 10% increase in the number of soil inspections versus last year while 
the other categories showed mixed results. Mr. Buzan stated that Jake Garrett, 
Wastewater Manager, is constantly seeking ways to improve the Division’s 

efficiency and impact on the contractor’s time.  This year he instituted a 
change in procedures for soil testing inspections that resulted in reduced 

inspection times.  ADEQ requires that 3 observation holes must be dug.  The 
County now allows 2 holes to be dug prior to the County staff’s arrival and the 
3rd in the process of being dug.  This has resulted in some tests taking less 

than 1½ hours to complete.  Mr. Garrett also designed the alternative septic 
system for the new Gila County Animal Control Facility at the County 
Fairgrounds resulting in financial savings for the County.  Mr. Buzan advised 

that there is a hurdle ahead for Wastewater.  Svanhildur (Svanna) Jafetsdottir, 
who has been the Environmental Engineering Specialist for the last 17 years, is 

retiring next month.  With the help of the Human Resources Department, Mr. 
Buzan is actively seeking her replacement.  In the meantime, Michael 
O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Department Director, has 

offered his staff, who have a sanitarian certification or are in the process of 
obtaining one, to aid if needed. In the meantime, Mr. Garrett will be evaluating 
procedures to see what can be combined or eliminated in order to continue to 

provide services needed by the County’s customers and in the timeframe they 
expect.  Mr. Garrett will continue to work with ADEQ to formalize a new 

delegation agreement so that it may be submitted to the Board for approval.  
The COVID-19 pandemic has slowed this process at the state level. 
 

Each Board member thanked Mr. Buzan for the presentation and for the efforts 
made by him and his staff to provide quality service to their customers. 

 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve, deny or modify 
Conditional Use Permit application number CUPP2008-001 to allow a 3-
story, 42-foot tall building height for a single-family residence and to 

allow for a three-story, 32-foot in height building for an accessory 
dwelling unit, both measured from grade level to the mean height between 



 

Page 4 of 13 

 

the eaves and roof ridge, in Residential 1L Use District in the Zane Grey 
Ranch subdivision northeast of Payson Arizona.  

 
Mr. Buzan provided the following information.  The property is 4.95 acres and 

it is in the Zane Grey Ranch Subdivision northeast of Payson.  During the plan 
review process, it was determined that both structures exceeded the maximum 
30’ building height (measured from grade to the truss means) and 2 stories 

allowed in the Residential 1L Use District.  Per the Gila County Zoning 
Ordinance, the property owner may apply for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to 
exceed the maximum height and stories.  The Zane Grey Ranch Subdivision is 

located a mile or so off the road to the Tonto Fish Hatchery.  It consists of 5 
lots and is surrounded by national forest land.  To fulfill the requirement of the 

Gila County Zoning Ordinance, the applicant held a neighborhood meeting on 
August 27, 2020.  The owners of the 4 other lots in the subdivision are in favor 
of a CUP being approved.  To date, the staff has not received any other 

comments from the public regarding this application.  Staff feels that the 
additional height and story of both structures would have a minimal negative 

visual impact on the neighborhood due to the property’s topography and the 
remoteness of the area.  Since both structures will be used as residences, it is 
compatible with the R1L Use District and the subdivision.  Staff recommended 

approval of the CUP to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  At its October 
15, 2020 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously to 
recommend the Board’s approval of the CUP.  This meeting was noticed as a 

public hearing in both the Payson Roundup and Silver Belt newspapers. 
 

Chairman Cline opened the public hearing.  There were no comments, so he 
closed the public hearing and asked for a motion on this item.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 

unanimously approved Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUPP2008-001. 
 
Item 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results 
contained in the Official Canvass of the General Election held on 
November 3, 2020, in Gila County, Arizona, and declare the Gila County 

results official.  
 
Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, proceeded to review the Canvass of Election 

Results booklet for the 2020 General Election.  Each Supervisor was provided a 
hard copy of the booklet containing the election results.  The booklet contained 

a precinct listing; voter turn-out for Gila County and other counties; total 
ballots summary to include a County summary of all races and a precinct 
detail of all races; polling place ballots to include a County summary of all 

races; early ballots to include a County summary of all races and a rejection 
summary; provisional ballots to include a County summary of all races and a 

rejection summary; official write-in candidates to include votes cast summary; 



 

Page 5 of 13 

 

and an election summary for the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement 
District governing board member election.  Mr. Mariscal commented that Gila 

County’s voter turnout was the second-highest in the state next to Yavapai 
County.  In Gila County, 28,057 ballots were cast out of 34,001 registered 

voters, which resulted in an 82.52% voter turnout.  He added that the voter 
turnout in 2016 was 77% and in the last election it was 80%. Approximately 
67% of the registered voters voted early and Mr. Mariscal commented that the 

early ballot process began sooner than in the last election.  He stated that 
23,099 ballots were received by mail with 20 of them being rejected which left a 
total of 23,079 ballots that were accepted. There were 356 provisional ballots 

received with 179 being rejected for a total of 177 ballots that were accepted.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, 

the Board unanimously declared the results of the General Election held on 
November 3, 2020, in Gila County as official. 
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Local 
Emergency Planning Commission to accept a pass-through grant award 

from the Arizona Emergency Response Commission-Emergency Response 
Fund for FY 2020-2021 in the total amount of $11,614.46 for the 
purchase of hazardous materials response equipment to be used by local 

fire departments. 
 
Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Department Director, 

advised that the Arizona Emergency Response Commission is authorized by 
Arizona Revised Statute Title 26 to establish financial grants to local 

governments utilizing monies from the Arizona Emergency Response Fund 
appropriated by the legislature to allow for the purchase of hazardous 
materials (hazmat) response equipment only.  During the FY 2021 cycle, 

Payson Fire Department submitted a request on behalf of the Gila County Local 
Emergency Planning Commission (LEPC) and local fire departments for hazmat 
response supplies.  Vice-Chairman Martin expressed her appreciation to Mr. 

O’Driscoll for being prepared in advance of emergencies.  Mr. O’Driscoll added 
that Supervisor Humphrey serves on the Gila County LEPC.  Supervisor 

Humphrey also expressed his appreciation for the LEPC “always looking ahead 
to keep our community safe.”  Chairman Cline echoed those sentiments.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 

Board unanimously authorized the Gila County LEPC to accept a pass-through 
grant award from the Arizona Emergency Response Commission as presented.   

 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-11-01 to 
accept property from Rita W. Cruse as described in Fee No. 2020-012841, 

Gila County Records.  
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Department Director, advised that a few miles 

north of the community of Young, Forest Road 512 crosses Cherry Creek. Gila 
County owns the bridge and land around the bridge. On the south side of the 



 

Page 6 of 13 

 

bridge, Reta Cruse owns a small parcel of land. The property is in the creek 
and on the adjacent bank. Ms. Cruse owns a sizable amount of property north 

of the bridge. Due to the County owning the bridge and land around the bridge, 
the Cruse property isn’t contiguous. Earlier this year, a representative of Ms. 

Cruse contacted the County and said Ms. Cruse would like to give the parcel to 
the County.  The parcel of land is beneficial to the County as it will allow 
access to the bridge and let the County maintain the channel and bridge as 

needed.  Each Supervisor commented that they were pleased to see this 
transaction.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 20-11-01.  

(A copy of the resolution is on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office and 
attached to these minutes.) 

 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bids No. 103020 to purchase two (2) 2021 Ford F350 XL 

regular cab chassis (DRW), 60” cab to axle length, 4x4 with 8’ or 9’ dump 
bed with low drop sides and upfitting of snowplows and spreader 

assemblies as outlined in the solicitation.  
 
Mr. Sanders stated that the vehicles to be purchased with this solicitation will 

be used by the Consolidated Roads Division to replace older vehicles.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 

103020. 
 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to set a date of Tuesday, December 15, 
2020, whereby the Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing to 
determine if the public interest is served by the Town of Star Valley's 

deannexation and return to Gila County the certain public right-of-way 
located on State Highway 260 within the Town of Star Valley.  
 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that she received a certified 
letter on October 26, 2020, from Timothy Grier, Manager/Attorney for the 

Town of Star Valley, which was dated October 21, 2020.  The letter provided 
notice per Arizona Revised Statute § 9-471.03 (C) that the Town adopted its 
Ordinance No. O 20-05 on October 20, 2020, to begin the process of 

deannexing and returning to Gila County the certain public right-of-way as 
legally described in the Town's Ordinance.  By statutory requirement, the 

Board of Supervisors must set a public hearing.  Ms. Sheppard suggested that 
the public hearing should take place during a Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors on Tuesday, December 15, 2020.  The meeting will begin at 10:00 

a.m.  Ms. Sheppard advised that the subject property is approximately 2.7 
miles located on State Highway 260 in Star Valley between Lion Springs Road 
and Preacher Canyon.  Supervisor Humphrey commented that he has some 

questions about this request; however, he will wait until the public hearing.  
Ms. Sheppard advised that Mr. Grier will be present at the December 15th 



 

Page 7 of 13 

 

meeting to answer questions of the Board.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously set a 

public hearing for Tuesday, December 15, 2020, to consider the Town of Star 
Valley’s deannexation and return to Gila County the certain public right-of-way 

in the Town of Star Valley. 
 
Item 5 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 

Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Approval of the appointments of Justices of the Peace Pro Tempore: 

Payson Regional Justice Court - Donald Garvin, Danny McKeen, Sam 
Goodman, Sherwood Johnston, and David E. Wolak; and Globe Regional 
Justice Court – Rebecca Baeza, Mary Navarro, Paul Larkin, Jerri Antunes, 

Don Calendar, Charles Adornetto, Sherwood Johnston, David E. Wolak, 
and Paul Julien; and approval of the appointments of the following Civil 

Traffic Hearing Officers: Griselda Ruiz, Lacey Root, Destiny Rocha, Jordon 
Mounce, and Xochitl Blanco with all terms expiring on December 31, 
2021.  

 
B.  Approval of the Board of Supervisors' October 27, 2020, and November 
3, 2020 meeting minutes.  

 
C.  Approval of the Human Resources Department monthly activity 

reports for October 2020.  
 
OCTOBER 6, 2020 

 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Gerald Nenninger - Public Works - Recycling and Landfill Equipment 

Operator Senior - 10/01/20 - Recycling and Landfill Management Fund - DOH 
02/28/05 

2. Andrea Cullen - Health and Emergency Services - Community Health 
Specialist - 10/06/20 - WIC Fund - DOH 11/17/19 
3. Debra Overholt - County Attorney's Office - Legal Secretary Senior - 

09/30/20 - Diversion Program CA Fund - DOH 06/15/09 
4. Donald Hayes III - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 10/24/20 - General 

Fund - DOH 11/09/15 
 
NEW HIRES: 

5. Steven Montgomery - Payson Constable's Office - Deputy Constable (.48) - 
10/12/20 - General Fund - Replacing Terry Phillips 
6. Brooke Ortiz - Sheriff's Office - 911 Dispatcher - 10/12/20 - General Fund - 

Replacing Ashley Harter 



 

Page 8 of 13 

 

7. Tori Wright - Health and Emergency Services - Medical Assistant - 10/05/20 
– Immunization (.50)/Private Stock Vaccines (.50) Funds - Replacing Savannah 

Barajas 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
8. Filomeno Butierez IV - Administrative Services - Administrative Clerk - 
10/06/20 - General Fund 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
9. Community Development - Environmental Health Specialist - Vacated by 

Svanhildur Jafetsdottir 
10. Health and Emergency Services - Community Health Specialist - Vacated 

by Andrea Cullen 
 
OCTOBER 13, 2020 

 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Leanna Romiti - Clerk of Superior Court - Associate Jury Commissioner - 
10/02/20 - General Fund - DOH 05/26/20 
2. Sonora Ramirez - Finance - Summer Youth Participant - 07/19/20 - General 

Fund - DOH 06/08/20 
 
NEW HIRES: 

3. Jenny Shults - Public Works - Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator - 
10/26/20 - Public Works Fund - Replacing Paul Maniaci 

4. Rose Dice - Public Works - From Temporary Scalehouse Attendant - To 
Recycling and Landfill Equipment Operator Senior - 10/26/20 - Recycling and 
Landfill Management Fund - Replacing Rose Dice 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
5. Rose Dice - Public Works - Temporary Scalehouse Attendant - 10/05/20 - 

Recycling and Landfill Management Fund 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
6. Evan Schmitz - Health and Emergency Services - Environmental Health 
Specialist - 08/02/20 - Health Service Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

7. Robert Cizek - Public Works - From Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic - To 
Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior - 10/12/20 - Public Works Fund - 
Replacing David O'Brien 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
8. Paula Horn - Health and Emergency Services - Deputy Director Health - 

10/12/20 - From Health Service (.90)/Prescription Drug OD Prevention (.10) 



 

Page 9 of 13 

 

Funds - To Health Service (.50)/Expanded Lab Capacity (.50) Funds - Change 
in fund code 

9. Savannah Barajas - Health and Emergency Services - Communicable 
Disease Specialist - 10/12/20 - From Public Health Emergency Preparedness 

Fund - To Expanded Lab Capacity Fund - Change in fund code 
10. Joshua Beck - Health and Emergency Services - Deputy Director Health 
and Emergency Management - 09/28/20 - From Various Funds - To General 

(.50)/Expanded Lab Capacity (.50) Funds - Change in fund code 
11. Debra Blevins - Health and Emergency Services - Health Administrative 
Manager - 10/12/20 - From Health Service Fund - To Health Service 

(.50)/Expanded Lab Capacity (.50) Funds - Change in fund code 
12. Ashlyn Earven - Health and Emergency Services - Community Health 

Specialist - 10/12/20 - From Tobacco-Free Environment Fund - To 
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Fund - Change in fund 
code 

13. Janice Chesser - Health and Emergency Services - Community Health 
Specialist - 10/12/20 - From Teen Pregnancy Prevention Services Fund - To 

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Fund - Change in fund 
code 
14. Tiffany Goff - Health and Emergency Services - Administrative Clerk Senior 

- 10/12/20 - From Health Service Fund - To Health Service (.50)/Expanded 
Lab Capacity (.50) Funds - Change in fund code 
15. Stella Gore - Health and Emergency Services - PHEP Coordinator - 

10/12/20 - From Public Health Emergency Preparedness Fund - To Expanded 
Lab Capacity Fund - Change in fund code 

16. Lauren Lopez - Health and Emergency Services - Summer Youth 
Participant - 10/12/20 - From Health Service Fund - To Expanded Lab 
Capacity Fund - Change in fund code 

17. Hortencia Lovin - Health and Emergency Services - Public Health Nurse - 
10/12/20 - From Health Service Fund - To Health Service (.50)/Expanded Lab 
Capacity (.50) Funds - Change in fund code 

18. Michael O'Driscoll - Health and Emergency Services - Director Health and 
Emergency Services - 10/12/20 - From Various Funds - To Health Service 

(.50)/Expanded Lab Capacity (.50) Funds - Change in fund code 
19. Nancy Rutherford - Health and Emergency Services - Health Programs 
Manager - 10/12/20 - From Various Funds - To Supplemental Nutrition 

Assistance Program Education Fund - Change in fund code 
20. Taylor Perez - Health and Emergency Service - Community Health 

Specialist - 10/12/20 - Community Health Grant Fund - To Community Health 
Grant (.50)/Expanded Lab Capacity (.50) Funds - Change in fund code 
21. Evan Schmitz - Health and Emergency Services - Environmental Health 

Specialist - 10/12/20 - From Health Service Fund - To Establishment COVID 
Compliance Fund - Change in fund code 
22. Karen Aguero-Ponce - Health and Emergency Services - Communicable 

Disease Specialist - 10/12/20 - From Public Health Fund - To Expanded Lab 
Capacity Fund - Change in fund code 



 

Page 10 of 13 

 

23. Rockell Schmidt - Health and Emergency Services - Communicable Disease 
Specialist - 10/12/20 - From Public Health Fund - To Expanded Lab Capacity 

Fund - Change in fund code 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
24. Clerk of Superior Court - Associate Jury Commissioner - Vacated by 
Leanna Romiti 

 
OCTOBER 20, 2020 
 

DEPARTURES: 
1. Jeff McClure - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 11/29/20 - General Fund - 

DOH 10/28/13 
2. William Carlson - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer Lt. - 01/04/21 - General 
Fund - DOH 01/31/00 

3. Daniel Savage - Public Works - Regional Roads Manager - 12/01/20 - Public 
Works Fund - DOH 06/19/89 

4. Pamela Alvino - Treasurer's Office - Accounting Clerk Specialist - 11/06/20 - 
General Fund - DOH 02/05/94 
5. Eric Estrada - Computer Services - IT Systems Administrator - 10/15/20 - 

General Fund - DOH 05/26/20 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

6. Brad Hicks - Public Works - From Recycling and Landfill Equipment 
Operator - To Recycling and Landfill Equipment Operator Senior - 10/26/20 - 

Recycling and Landfill Management Fund - Replacing Ernest Davis 
7. Vincent Montoya - Public Works - From Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator - To Recycling and Landfill Equipment Operator Senior - 10/26/20 - 

From Public Works Fund - To Recycling and Landfill Management Fund - 
Replacing Gerald Nenninger  
 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
8. Stephen Armstrong - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General 

Fund - Change in overtime fund 
9. Aaron Heck - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General Fund - 
Change in overtime fund 

10. Thor Nudson - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff Sgt. - 07/01/20 - General 
Fund - Change in overtime fund 

11. Elliana Cabrera - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General 
Fund - Change in overtime fund 
12. Mark Highstreet II - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 08/01/20 - General 

Fund - Change in overtime fund 
13. Gilbert Olivarez - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General 
Fund - Change in overtime fund 

14. Keith Conway - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General Fund 
- Change in overtime fund 



 

Page 11 of 13 

 

15. Cole LaBonte - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General Fund - 
Change in overtime fund 

16. Christopher Sanks - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General 
Fund - Change in overtime fund 

17. Matthew Havey - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General 
Fund - Change in overtime fund 
18. Justin Montijo - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 07/01/20 - General Fund 

- Change in overtime fund 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 

19. Public Works - Recycling and Landfill Equipment Operator - Vacated by 
Brad Hicks 

20. Public Works - Public Works Roads Supervisor - Vacated by Steve Seaman 
21. Computer Services - IT Systems Administrator - Vacated by Eric Estrada 
 

OCTOBER 27, 2020 
 

DEPARTURES: 
1. David Hill - County Attorney's Office - Deputy County Attorney Senior - 
11/06/20 - General Fund - DOH 08/05/19 

2. Robert Johnson - Public Works - Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator - 10/16/20 - Public Works Fund - DOH 01/06/14 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
3. Derek Riggs - Library District - IT Support Specialist - 10/27/20 - Library 

Assistance Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

4. Shaunae Casillas - Health and Emergency Management - From 
Communicable Disease Specialist - To Health Prevention Coordinator - 
11/09/20 - From Prescription Drug Overdose Prevention Fund - To Tobacco-

Free Environment Fund - FY21 Grant funded position 
5. Veronica Hernandez - Health and Emergency Management - From 

Community Health Specialist - To Client Outreach Specialist - 11/09/20 - 
From WIC Fund - To Tobacco-Free Environment (.30)/Teen Pregnancy 
Prevention Services (.70) Funds - FY21 Grant funded position  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 

6. County Attorney's Office - Deputy County Attorney Senior - Vacated by 
David Hill 
7. Public Works - Regional Roads Manager - Vacated by Daniel Savage 

8. Sheriff's Office - Records Clerk - Vacated by Chebel Sandoval  
 
D.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting 

period of October 1, 2020, through October 31, 2020.  
 



 

Page 12 of 13 

 

Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 305542 through 305545, 305547 through 305737, 305739 through 

305739, 305741 through 305979, and 305981 through 306052 totaling 

$4,104,661.98 for the period 10-01-20 through 10-31-20.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants is permanently attached to 

these minutes.) 

 
E.  Acknowledgement of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the month of October.  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, 

the Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 5A-5E. 
 

Item 4 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 

may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 

matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 
 

There weren’t any other comments from the public. 
 

Item 5 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on information presented. 
 
The Supervisors and Deputy County Manager and District Librarian advised 

that they did not have any current events to present.   
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 10:38 a.m. 
 

 



 

Page 13 of 13 

 

APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-6337   Consent Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Reporting
Period:

October 2020

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Esther Canez, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for October 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerks Report - October 2020



















   
ARF-6350   Consent Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for October 2020

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Charlotte Williams, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for October 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by the Recorder's Office. 

Attachments
Recorder's October 2020 Monthly Report





















   
ARF-6356   Consent Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly Report for October 2020

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr. 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for October
2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for October 2020









   
ARF-6357   Consent Agenda Item     3. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Reporting
Period:

October 2020

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of  Peace's Office Monthly Report for October
2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
October 2020





Clearance Rate

LINE ID CASE TYPE Total Filings* Total 
Dispositions**

Clearance Rate Cases Pending End 
Of Month

Cases on Warrants 
Status

Section - 1 Misdemeanor

Person
A Person-Sex Offenses 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

B Person-Kidnapping 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

C Person-Aggravated Assaults 0 0 0.00 % 1 0

D Person-Other Assaults 3 4 133.33 % 63 40

Property
E Property-Burglary 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

F Property-Auto Theft 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

G Property-Other 1 2 200.00 % 57 58

Other
H Drug Possession/Paraphernalia 10 5 50.00 % 120 104

I Weapons 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

J Public Order 9 3 33.33 % 84 62

K Interfering With Judicial Proceedings 0 0 0.00 % 9 6

L Failure to Appear/Misd&CrimTraffic 0 0 0.00 % 5 1

M Petty Offenses 0 3 0.00 % 3 1

N Other 4 4 100.00 % 100 97

O Section 1: Total Misdemeanor 27 21 77.78 % 442 369

Section - 2 Criminal Traffic

Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Misdemeanor, Criminal And Civil Traffic Caseload Summary By Case 

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404
START DATE : 10/1/2020          END DATE :10/31/2020

Total Filings & Dispositions

 Misdemeanor, Criminal and Civil Traffic Caseload Summary Report By Case  11/19/2020 7:34:53 AM  Page 1 of 1

http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Person%20cases%20Sex%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Sex%20Offenses&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Person%20cases%20Sex%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Sex%20Offenses&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Person%20cases%20Sex%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Sex%20Offenses&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Person%20cases%20Sex%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Sex%20Offenses&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Person%20cases%20Kidnapping&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Kidnapping&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Person%20cases%20Kidnapping&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Kidnapping&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Person%20cases%20Kidnapping&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Kidnapping&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Person%20cases%20Kidnapping&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Kidnapping&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Person%20cases%20Aggravated%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Aggravated%20Assaults&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Person%20cases%20Aggravated%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Aggravated%20Assaults&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Person%20cases%20Aggravated%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Aggravated%20Assaults&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Person%20cases%20Aggravated%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Aggravated%20Assaults&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1D-Person%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Other%20Assaults&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1D-Person%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Other%20Assaults&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1D-Person%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Other%20Assaults&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1D-Person%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Other%20Assaults&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Property%20cases%20Burglary&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Burglary&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Property%20cases%20Burglary&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Burglary&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Property%20cases%20Burglary&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Burglary&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Property%20cases%20Burglary&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Burglary&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Property%20cases%20Auto%20Theft&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Auto%20Theft&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Property%20cases%20Auto%20Theft&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Auto%20Theft&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Property%20cases%20Auto%20Theft&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Auto%20Theft&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Property%20cases%20Auto%20Theft&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Auto%20Theft&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Property%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Property%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Property%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Property%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Drug%20Possession&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Drug%20Possession%2FParaphernalia&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Drug%20Possession&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Drug%20Possession%2FParaphernalia&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Drug%20Possession&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Drug%20Possession%2FParaphernalia&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Drug%20Possession&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Drug%20Possession%2FParaphernalia&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Weapon&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Weapons&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Weapon&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Weapons&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Weapon&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Weapons&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Weapon&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Weapons&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Public%20Order&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Public%20Order&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Public%20Order&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Public%20Order&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Public%20Order&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Public%20Order&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Public%20Order&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Public%20Order&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1D-Interfering&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Interfering%20With%20Judicial%20Proceedings&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1D-Interfering&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Interfering%20With%20Judicial%20Proceedings&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1D-Interfering&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Interfering%20With%20Judicial%20Proceedings&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1D-Interfering&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Interfering%20With%20Judicial%20Proceedings&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1E-Failure%20to%20Appear&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Failure%20to%20Appear%2FMisd%26CrimTraffic&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1E-Failure%20to%20Appear&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Failure%20to%20Appear%2FMisd%26CrimTraffic&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1E-Failure%20to%20Appear&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Failure%20to%20Appear%2FMisd%26CrimTraffic&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1E-Failure%20to%20Appear&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Failure%20to%20Appear%2FMisd%26CrimTraffic&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1F-Petty%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Petty%20Offenses&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1F-Petty%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Petty%20Offenses&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1F-Petty%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Petty%20Offenses&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1F-Petty%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Petty%20Offenses&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1G-Other%20Misdemeanor&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1G-Other%20Misdemeanor&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1G-Other%20Misdemeanor&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1G-Other%20Misdemeanor&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=


DUI
A Motor Vehicle 4 3 75.00 % 59 60

B Extreme Motor Vehicle 0 1 0.00 % 25 30

C Boating/Flying 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

Serious Violations
D Leaving the Scene 0 0 0.00 % 3 1

E Reckless Driving 0 0 0.00 % 8 0

F Racing on Highway 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

G All Other 0 0 0.00 % 2 1

Other Violations
H Criminal Speed 5 3 60.00 % 44 14

I All Other 8 13 162.50 % 287 336

J Section 2: Total Criminal Traffic 17 20 117.65 % 428 442

Section - 3 CivilTraffic
A Driver License 7 3 42.86 % 21 0

B Registration 8 4 50.00 % 55 0

C Insurance 8 11 137.50 % 78 0

D Speeding 63 29 46.03 % 220 1

E Excessive Speeding 29 17 58.62 % 49 1

F Red Light 0 1 0.00 % 4 0

G Seat Belt 10 5 50.00 % 28 0

H State DPS Photo Enforcement 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

I Other Civil Traffic 10 11 110.00 % 176 1

J Section 3: Total Civil Traffic 135 81 60.00 % 631 3

Section - 4 Local - Non Criminal Ordinances
A Parking 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

B Non-Parking 0 1 0.00 % 0 0

Section - 5 Felony

 Misdemeanor, Criminal and Civil Traffic Caseload Summary Report By Case  11/19/2020 7:34:53 AM  Page 1 of 1

http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Boating%20and%20Flying&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Boating%20and%20Flying&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Boating%20and%20Flying&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Boating%20and%20Flying&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Boating%20and%20Flying&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Boating%20and%20Flying&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Boating%20and%20Flying&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Boating%20and%20Flying&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Leaving%20the%20Scene&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Leaving%20the%20Scene&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Leaving%20the%20Scene&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Leaving%20the%20Scene&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Leaving%20the%20Scene&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Leaving%20the%20Scene&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Leaving%20the%20Scene&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Leaving%20the%20Scene&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Reckless%20Driving&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Reckless%20Driving&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Reckless%20Driving&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Reckless%20Driving&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Reckless%20Driving&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Reckless%20Driving&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Reckless%20Driving&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Reckless%20Driving&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Racing%20on%20Highway&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Racing%20on%20Highway&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Racing%20on%20Highway&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Racing%20on%20Highway&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Racing%20on%20Highway&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Racing%20on%20Highway&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Racing%20on%20Highway&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Racing%20on%20Highway&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1D-Other%20Serious%20Violations&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1D-Other%20Serious%20Violations&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1D-Other%20Serious%20Violations&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1D-Other%20Serious%20Violations&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Criminal%20Speed&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20Criminal%20Speed&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Criminal%20Speed&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20Criminal%20Speed&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Criminal%20Speed&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20Criminal%20Speed&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Criminal%20Speed&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20Criminal%20Speed&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-All%20Other&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-All%20Other&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-All%20Other&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-All%20Other&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Driver%20License&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Driver%20License&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Driver%20License&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Driver%20License&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Driver%20License&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Driver%20License&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Driver%20License&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Driver%20License&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Registration&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Registration&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Registration&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Registration&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Registration&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Registration&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Registration&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Registration&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Insurance&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Insurance&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Insurance&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Insurance&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Insurance&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Insurance&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Insurance&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Insurance&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1D-Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Speeding&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1D-Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Speeding&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1D-Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Speeding&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1D-Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Speeding&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1E-Excessive%20Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Excessive%20Speeding&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1E-Excessive%20Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Excessive%20Speeding&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1E-Excessive%20Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Excessive%20Speeding&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1E-Excessive%20Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Excessive%20Speeding&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1F-Red%20Light&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Red%20Light&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1F-Red%20Light&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Red%20Light&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1F-Red%20Light&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Red%20Light&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1F-Red%20Light&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Red%20Light&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1G-Seat%20Belt&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Seat%20Belt&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1G-Seat%20Belt&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Seat%20Belt&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1G-Seat%20Belt&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Seat%20Belt&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1G-Seat%20Belt&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Seat%20Belt&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1H-DPS&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20State%20DPS%20Photo%20Enforcement&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1H-DPS&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20State%20DPS%20Photo%20Enforcement&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1H-DPS&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20State%20DPS%20Photo%20Enforcement&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1H-DPS&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20State%20DPS%20Photo%20Enforcement&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1I-Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1I-Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1I-Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1I-Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Parking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20Parking&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Parking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20Parking&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Parking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20Parking&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Parking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20Parking&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-NonParking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20NonParking&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-NonParking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20NonParking&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-NonParking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20NonParking&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-NonParking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20NonParking&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=


A Total Felony 9 7 77.78 % 63 12

 GRAND TOTAL 188 130 69.15 % 1564 826
Section - 6 Domestic Violence

A Felony-Domestic Violence 0 0 0.00 % 2 0

B Misdemeanor-Domestic Violence 4 0 0.00 % 64 0

Section - 7 Special Case Characteristics
A Self Represented Litigants 178 114 64.04 % 1427 774

B Interpreter Services Provided 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

 Misdemeanor, Criminal and Civil Traffic Caseload Summary Report By Case  11/19/2020 7:34:53 AM  Page 1 of 1

http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-TotalFelony&ReportColumn=Section%205%3A%20Felony%20-%20TotalFelony&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-TotalFelony&ReportColumn=Section%205%3A%20Felony%20-%20TotalFelony&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-TotalFelony&ReportColumn=Section%205%3A%20Felony%20-%20TotalFelony&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-TotalFelony&ReportColumn=Section%205%3A%20Felony%20-%20TotalFelony&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Felony%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Felony%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Felony%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Felony%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Felony%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Felony%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Felony%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Felony%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Interpreter%20Provided&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Services%20Provided&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Interpreter%20Provided&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Services%20Provided&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Interpreter%20Provided&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Services%20Provided&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Interpreter%20Provided&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Services%20Provided&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=


Column ID 1 2 3 4 5 6

LINE 
ID CASE TYPE New Filing Transfer In Reopened Reactivated

Active Inactive

Section - 1 Civil
A Small Claims 23 0 3 0 0 0

B Forcible Detainer / Eviction Action 7 0 4 0 0 0

C Tort 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Contract 1 0 0 0 0 0

E Debt-Seller Plaintiff 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Other Civil 126 1 21 1 0 0

G Total Civil Complaints 157 1 28 1 0 0
Section - 2 Domestic Violence & 
Harassment Petitions

A Civil Emergency Order of Protection 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Civil Order of Protection 19 0 8 0 1 0

C Injunction Against Harassment 29 0 3 0 1 0

D Injunction Against Workplace 
Harassment

1 0 2 0 0 0

Section - 3 Special Case 
Characteristics

A Self Represented Litigants 205 1 41 1 2 0

B Interpreter Provided 0 0 0 0 0 0

Limited Jurisdic  
START DATE : 10/1/2020             

Begin Pending

 11/19/2020 7:33:28 AM  Page 1 of 1

http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=


7 8 9 10 11 12 13

Placed on 
Inactive Status

Entry of Judgment Reopened Active Inactive Active Inactive

3 0 0 23 0

6 0 0 5 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 1 0

0 0 0 0 0

22 0 0 126 1

31 0 0 155 1

0 0 0 0 0

8 0 0 20 0

3 0 0 30 0

2 0 0 1 0

44 0 0 205 1

0 0 0 0 0

 ction Courts
             END DATE : 10/31/2020

Terminations Statistical Correction End Pending

 11/19/2020 7:33:28 AM  Page 1 of 1

http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm22/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=10%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=10%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=


   
ARF-6360   Consent Agenda Item     3. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office monthly report for
October 2020

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michael Sellars, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for October 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly report submitted by the
Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
October 2020

































   
ARF-6359   Consent Agenda Item     3. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
October 2020

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for October 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
October 2020































   
ARF-6342   Executive Session Item     6. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2020  
Submitted For: James Menlove, County Manager 
Submitted By: James Menlove, County Manager
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2020-2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Jan. 1, 2021 - Dec
31, 2024

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Manager Employment Contract between Gila County and W.
James Menlove, CPA, CPM

Background Information
The Employment Contract for County Manager W. James Menlove expires
on December 31, 2020. Mr. Menlove has been the Gila County Manager
since July 1, 2017.

The members of the Gila County Board of Supervisors desire the services
of an experienced professional to oversee the day-to-day operations of
County government under their purview; implement their directives and
policies; lead county-wide strategic planning, programs, and initiatives;
and provide them with the information necessary to properly assess the
financial condition of County government and the efficiency and
effectiveness of County services. W. James Menlove is an experienced
professional in local Arizona government management who possesses the
skills and abilities to lead strategic, county-wide programs and initiatives
and to oversee the day-to-day operations of Gila County government. Mr.
Menlove is the current County Manager; therefore, the Board desires to
continue to preserve stability and continuity, and promote independent
and professional administration by engaging Mr. Menlove in a four-year
employment agreement.

Evaluation
County Manager is a critical position in the Gila County government. To



County Manager is a critical position in the Gila County government. To
preserve stability and maintain continuity, it is important to have an
experienced professional in this position and to have a statement of the
mutual commitment of the parties to the financial and operational
well-being of Gila County government on behalf of the citizens of Gila
County.

Conclusion
It is in the best interests of Gila County to engage W. James Menlove as
its County Manager for a four-year term commencing January 1, 2021
and concluding December 31, 2024.

Recommendation
It is in the best interests of Gila County to engage W. James Menlove as
its County Manager for a four-year term commencing January 1, 2021
and concluding December 31, 2024.

Suggested Motion
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (1), vote to convene in executive session
to discuss and consider a proposed four-year employment contract
between Gila County and W. James Menlove for the period January 1,
2021, through December 31, 2024. (Woody Cline) 

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	Gila County School Superintendent's Letter of Certification for the November 3, 2020, Gila County School District Elections 
	Att1_Canvass Letter
	Att2_Election Results
	Att3_A.R.S. 15-426
	Request to Advertise Request for Qualifications No. 111020-Indigent Legal Attorney Services
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_RFQ No 111020 Indigent Defense Attorney Services
	Amendment No. 2 and Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS18-177678) with ADHS
	Att1_Amendment 3
	Att2_Amendment 2
	1.2 The Price Sheet is revised and replaced with the Price Sheet of this Amendment Two (2);

	Att3_Amendment 1
	Att4_IGA Contract No. ADHS18-177678 executed
	Gila County_Star Valley Animal Control Contract Cancellation
	Att1_SV Gila Animal Control IGA
	Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 072920-Sub Grantee for COVID-19 Incident Management Support
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 072920
	Att2_Contract No. 072920
	Authorization to Publish a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous Surplus Vehicles and Equipment
	Att1_Public Auction
	Request to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 110520 CRS-2P & MC-800 Chip Seal Oils
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Sheet1

	Att2_Request for Proposals No. 110520
	Approval to use Sourcewell Contract No. 060920-KTC with Inland Kenworth, Inc. for the purchase of 2021 Water Truck.
	Att1_Contract Agreement
	Att2_Inland Kenworth Quote for Gila County
	Att3_Sourcewell RFP _060920-KTC Signed Contract
	Appointment or Reappointment of BOS members to Boards, Committees and Organizations for 2021
	Sealed Bid for Purchase of Assessor's Parcel No. 101-09-129
	Att1_101-09-129 Information
	Att2_101-09-129 Map
	Appointment of Libertarian Party Precinct Committeemen in Gila County
	Att1_Gila County Libertarian Party Appointments
	Att2_ARS 16-821
	November 17, 2020
	Att1_11-17-20 Meeting Minutes
	October 2020
	Att1_Clerks Report - October 2020
	Recorder's Office Monthly Report for October 2020
	Att1_Recorder's October 2020 Monthly Report
	Monthly Report for October 2020
	Att1_Monthly Report for October 2020
	October 2020
	Att1_October 2020
	nov 2020JUSTICE TREASURER REPORT.pdf
	2020 november crim traff.pdf
	AOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_C

	2020 october civil.pdf
	AOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Summary


	Globe Regional Constable's Office monthly report for October 2020
	Att1_October 2020
	Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for October 2020
	Att1_October 2020
	Gila County Manager Employment Contract with W. James Menlove, CPA, CPM

